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CHARLES E MORAN
1930-2004

THE DENNY’S FAMILY IS DEEPLY SADDENED
BY THE DEATH OF OUR LEADER, COLLEAGUE AND FRIEND.

Charles Moran joined Denny’s Board of Directors in
January 1998, serving as its Chairman since 2002, We are
extremely grateful for his tremendous contributions to
Dennys, as he played a pivotal role in the turnaround of
the company.

Charley was a retired executive with ) years of leadership
experience at Sears, Roebuck and Co., including member-
ship on the Sears Management Comumittee as well as senior
positions in the arcas of operations, corporate planning and
wechnology. ’

His guidance and friendship will be greatly missed.






(dollars in millions, except per share data)

Fiscal Year Ended

Dec. 31, 2003  Dec. 25, 2002

Revenue
Company restaurant sales $851.8 $858.6
Franchised and licensed restaurant revenue 89.1 90.0
Total revenue $940.9 $948.6
Operating income 48.4 49.6
Net income (loss) (31.5) 68.1
Diluted income (loss) per share 0.77) 1.68
Total debt $593.5 $596.0
Number of restaurants 1,638 1,676
Company-owned 561 566
Franchised & licensed 1,077 1,110
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To Our Valued Shareholders, Employees, Franchisees and Guests

Last year was the restaurant industry’s weakest in decades, and the
midscale segment was particularly hard-hit. A sluggish economy,
harsh winter weather and the war in Iraq all took their toll. Denny’s
felt the impact as well. The high expectations we held for 2003,
viewing it as the beginning of a turnaround at the company, turned
to disappointment. However, in the later months of 2003, we
began to see evidence of a recovery: Denny’s same-store sales in the
fourth quarter grew 3.0 percent at company-owned units and
2.8 percent at franchised restaurants. Guest counts increased
1.0 percent at company restaurants. Also in the fourth quarter,
operating income rose by $8.9 million to $11.3 million from
the prior year. Moreover, I'm pleased to report that the
improvement has continued into 2004 and has been even
stronger. Company same-store sales increased 6.4 percent for the
first quarter of 2004 on the strength of a 3.3 percent increase in
guest traffic. Similarly, franchise same-store sales were up 6.7
percent in the first quarter of 2004.

For full year 2003, same-store sales increased
0.2 percent at Denny’s company-owned restaurants and declined
0.6 percent at franchised units. At company units, a 3.2 percent
increase in average check offset a 2.9 percent decline in guest
counts. Cost pressures from increases in commodities, utilities,

health benefits and workers’ compensation were significant,

~

especially in the second half of the year. By the end of 2003,
operating revenue and operating income were down slightly for
the year, and we had recorded a net loss of $31.5 million.

In 2004, we will maintain our focus on sales growth
and guest count growth, which are the clear drivers of our business.
Both are fueled by Denny’s great-tasting food and wide menu
variety. We are building on our solid reputation for serving
great breakfasts, while reminding customers that Denny’s is also
a great place for lunch and dinner. New lunch and dinner offer-
ings we promoted earlier in 2003 halted traffic declines at these
dayparts and contributed to guest check growth. We returned
to a breakfast emphasis in the second half of the year.

We also implemented controls to manage our new
operating challenges. This includes negotiating future prices on
food items when available; setting menu pricing that protects our
margins while giving customers great value; achieving cost savings
through improved efficiency in operations; making significant
health-care plan changes effective in 2004; and enhancing our
safety programs.

One of the most important investments we made

in 2003 was in our own people—from our restaurant teams to our




Denny’s same-store sales in the fourth quarter grew
3.0 percent at company-owned units and 2.8 percent at
franchised restaurants. Guest counts increased 1.0 percent

at company restaurants. Operating income increased by
$8.9 million to $11.3 million.

corporate staff. In training programs carried out nationwide,
our employees and franchisees recommitted themselves to being
leaders in customer service and hospitality. We are raising the
“service bar” to align it with customer expectations, and our

employees and franchisees are stepping up to the challenge.

During 2003, as in the previous two years, we
invested heavily in general facilities improvements at our company
restaurants, while continuing to invest in our remodel program.
Capital spending on remodels continues to be a priority for both
company and franchise restaurants. We remodeled 56 company
restaurants in 2003 and expect to remodel 60 locations in 2004.
Franchisees remodeled 99 restaurants in 2003 and we expect
them to remodel 120 more in 2004.

‘We have made significant investments in the Denny’s
brand over the previous three years to position it for long-term
growth and profitability. These investments have included new
and improved menu offerings, extensive capital improvements,
increased restaurant staffing and a focused national media cam-
paign. Our employees and franchisees are energized by the

positive sales momentum we have achieved, and they are excited
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about our prospects going forward. We believe the steps we have
taken and the investments we have made are starting to show
results. We thank you—our shareholders, employees, franchisees
and guests—for placing your confidence in America’s best-known
family restaurant.

Nelson J. Marchioli
Chief Executive Officer and President

March 2004
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Las Vegas, one of the most popular U.S. travel destinations,

is home to the busiest Denny’ in the country. More than
35 million people visit Las Vegas each year to enjoy the
world’s finest casino resorts, hotels, shows and attractions.
Fifteen 24-hour Denny’s restaurants serve the “24-hour

city,” and more development is underway for 2004.
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Denny’s in Dover, Delaware, at the main entrance to
Dover International Speedway® hosts thousands of race
fans each year who attend NASCAR race weekends

at the famed “Monster Mile®” Dover International

Speedway has become one of the biggest venues on the
NASCAR NEXTEL Cup circuit, with a seating capamty
of 140,000.
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Other Locations:

Donrgis of Hollyswood

Theme parks, dining, shopping and touring make Orlando

a vacation hot spot with 43 million visitors annually. The

Sunshine State is one of Denny’s largest territories, second
only to California, with 60 restaurants in the Orlando

area alone.

As an entertainment mecca, Hollywood draws millions of

visitors to its classic “Walk of Fame” and other attractions

each year. Since the 1970s, Denny’s on Sunset Boulevard

has greeted tourists, up-and-coming entertainers and

residents alike.




Number One in Family Dining Segment

Harold Butler’s vision of a 24-hour high-value restaurant intrigued customers and entrepreneurs, who recognized the potential of the
young chain and sought to become part of its growth through franchising. Denny’s established its proven franchise system in 1963.
By the end of 1981, Denny’s had grown to over 1,000 restaurants—200 of which were franchises. The company ramped up franchising
in the late 1990s, and franchisees opened a record 84 new Denny’s restaurants in 2000. Steady franchise development has continued,
and today nearly two-thirds of all Denny’s restaurants are owned and operated by franchisees. At December 31, 2003, Denny’s had
561 company-owned restaurants and 1,077 franchised and licensed restaurants.

The company is giving increased attention to franchising in 2004 to attract new franchisees and expand existing franchise
relationships. Additionally, development of company-owned restaurants will resume this year on a limited basis as we seek prime
development sites.

During 2003, the company implemented a new customized, fully integrated tool for strategic development planning. Denny’s
Geographic Information System combines the latest in customer profiling, market analysis, sales projection and mapping software. The
stand-alone, laptop system provides instant, on-site evaluation of key markets and potential locations. By making our development
planning more precise, this advanced tool helps us select the best sites available.

Strong franchise support, a large national marketing budget and the most recognized name in family dining make Denny’s a
great franchise proposition. It is no wonder Denny’s has been selected as the No. 1 Franchise among family restaurants in Entrepreneur
magazine’s annual Franchise 500, and as one of the top 30 among all franchisors in Franchise Times’ Top 200 kList.

“Denny’s corporate and franchisees are embarking on
the brand’s next 50 years with a tremendous sense of
optimism, spirit and commitment to the business.”

—Ben Bagnas
Denny’s franchisee for 15 years
Chair of Denny’ Franchisee Association
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50 Years of Serving Great Food

The qualities that have elevated the Denny’s brand for 50 years—good food and hospitality in a comfortable environment—are still at

the heart of today’s business.

Denny’s menu evolution reached a significant milestone when the new Meat Lover’s Breakfast, introduced in July, surpassed
the popularity of the Original Grand Slam® as the best-selling entree. Additionally, the Smoked Sausage Breakfast and Country-Fried
Steak and Biscuits Breakfast delighted customers as new menu choices. Hoagie-style sandwiches, mini-burgers and nachos were introduced
for lunch and dinner. A signature Caramel Apple Crisp was added to the redesigned dessert menu. We also featured a limited-time

barbecue line-up, including St. Louis style ribs and grilled chicken, during the summer.

The spring 2004 menu now features a special Carb Watch section, making it easier for our guests to find low-carb options.
We also added new offerings to our low-fat Fit Fare® category. As the first family restaurant chain to offer a kids’ menu, we recognize
it is not always easy for parents to steer their kids to healthy menu fare. We have created a new kids” menu that is specially designed so
children can eat good food that is good for them. The new menu includes side choices such as fruit, vegetables and a garden salad. It

will be available nationwide in June 2004. These additions are in response to the changing diets of American consumers.

Harold Butler believed in giving customers good service, and we are continuing the tradition of customer service through
the “We Will” hospitality training initiative for all company and franchise employees. We trained approximately 60,000 employees in
Denny’s hospitality philosophies during 2003.

Denny’s Meat Lover’s Breakfast gave customers a new
favorite in 2003.
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From it’s beginning as a single restaurant in California in 1953, Denny’s has grown into the most
recognized name in family dining. For 50 years, we’ve been an integral part of the American
way of life. Breakfast, value, “come as you are” environment, 24/7 service, family—these
are the strengths of this incredible brand. The yellow and red Denny’s sign is a beacon for
hungry travelers...families enjoying a weekend treat...students taking a late-night study
break...workers stopping to refuel along their way...friends spending time together. Millions
of customers visit Denny’s every week. Hundreds of franchisees deliver a consistent

Denny’s experience across the country and abroad. Denny’s is a good place to sit and eat

great-tasting food any time of the day or night. We are great people, serving great people.
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Ready for the Next 50 Years and Beyond. ..

Denny is the premier family restaurant chain—a brand with incredible staying power. Widespread brand recognition, leading market

share, highest unit penetration and largest advertising budget in the family segment are all marks of Denny’s success. We recognize that
each customer experience is what will set us apart in the years to come. Denny’s and its approximately 27,000 company employees and
hundreds of franchisees are proud of the brand’s legacy of good food and service. Our mission is to profitably grow the company by
providing our guests with great food, service and hospitality in a clean, comfortable restaurant, 24 hours a day. This is what our guests
expect, and what we are committed to delivering. . . €V€V}/ time.
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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

The forward-looking statements included in the “Business,” “Legal Proceedings,” “Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations,” and “Quantitative and Qualitative
Disclosures About Market Risk” sections, which reflect our best judgment based on factors currently known,
involve risks and uncertainties. Words such as “expects, ” plans,” and

3 4 9 4

anticipates,” “believes,” “intends,
“hopes,” variations of such words and similar expressions are intended to identify such forward-looking
statements. Actual results could differ materially from those anticipated in these forward-looking statements as a
result of a number of factors including, but not limited to, the factors discussed in such sections and those set
forth in the cautionary statements contained in Exhibit 99 to this Form 10-K (see Exhibit 99 — Safe Harbor
Under the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995). The forward-looking information we have provided
in such sections pursuant to the safe harbor established under the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of
1995 should be evaluated in the context of these factors.




PART 1

Item 1. Business
Introduction

Denny’s Corporation, or Denny’s or the Company, is one of the largest restaurant companies in the United
States. Denny’s, through its wholly owned subsidiaries, Denny’s Holdings, Inc. and Denny’s, Inc., owns and
operates the Denny’s restaurant brand. The Denny’s brand consists of 1,638 restaurants, 561 of which are
company-owned and operated and 1,077 of which are franchised and licensed restaurants.

On July 10, 2002, Denny’s predecessor, Advantica Restaurant Group, Inc., or Advantica, completed the
divestiture of FRD Acquisition Co., or FRD, a wholly owned subsidiary. We have accounted for FRD as a
discontinued operation, through that date, in the accompanying consolidated financial statements. See Note 14 to
our consolidated financial statements for additional information. With the completion of the FRD divestiture,
Advantica completed its transition from a restaurant holding company to a one-brand entity; accordingly, on July
10, 2002, we changed our name to Denny’s Corporation.

Description of Business

Denny’s is America’s largest family-style restaurant chain in terms of number of units and market share. At
December 31, 2003, Denny’s restaurants operated in 49 states, the District of Columbia, 2 U.S. territories and 4
foreign countries, with concentrations in California (24% of total restaurants), Florida (11%) and Texas (10%).

Denny’s restaurants generally are open 24 hours a day, 7 days a week. This “always open” operating
platform is a distinctive competitive advantage. Our “abundant value” strategy promotes high quality, generous
portions and reasonable prices with friendly and efficient service in a pleasant atmosphere. Denny’s expansive
menu offers traditional American-style food such as hamburgers and fries, grilled chicken breast dinners, the
very popular Grand Slam breakfast and our Meat Lover’s breakfast.

Denny’s sales are evenly distributed across each of its dayparts (i.e., breakfast, lunch, dinner and late-night);
however, breakfast items account for the majority of Denny’s sales. In 2003, Denny’s company-owned
restaurants had an average guest check of $6.94 and average sales of $1.5 million.

Operations

We believe that the proper execution of basic restaurant operations in each Denny’s restaurant, whether it is
company-owned or franchised, is critical to our success. To meet and exceed our customers’ expectations, we
require both our company-owned and our franchised restaurants to maintain the same strict brand standards.
These standards relate to the preparation and efficient serving of quality food; maintenance, repair and
cleanliness of restaurants; and the appearance and conduct of employees.

We devote significant effort to ensuring all restaurants offer quality food served by friendly, knowledgeable
and attentive employees in a clean and well-maintained restaurant. Through a network of division, region, area
and restaurant level managers, we ensure our company-owned restaurants meet our vision of “Great Food and
Great Service by Great People...Everytime.”

A principal feature of Denny’s restaurant operations is the constant focus on improving operations at the
unit level. Unit managers are hands-on and versatile in their supervisory activities. Region and area managers
have no offices and spend substantially all of their time in the restaurants. A significant majority of restaurant
management personnel began as hourly associates in the restaurants and, therefore, know how to perform
restaurant functions and are able to train by example.




Denny’s maintains a training program for associates and restaurant managers. Video training tapes
demonstrating various restaurant job functions are located at each restaurant and are viewed by associates prior to
a change in job function, before using new equipment or before performing new procedures. General managers
and restaurant managers receive training at specially designated training units in the following areas:

¢ customer interaction;

» kitchen management and food preparation;

+ data processing and cost control techniques;

« equipment and building maintenance; and

* leadership skills.

Denny’s employs a comprehensive system to ensure that the menu remains interesting and relevant to all
guests. The research and development group within the marketing department utilizes consumer trends,
competitive activity and operator input to determine new offerings. New offerings are developed in our test
kitchen and then introduced in selected restaurants to determine customer response and to ensure that
consistency, quality standards and profitability are maintained. If a new item proves successful at the research
and development level, it is usually tested in selected markets. A successful menu item is then incorporated into

the restaurant system. Low selling items are periodically removed from the menu. While research and
development are important to the Denny’s business, amounts expended for these activities are not significant.

Financial and management control is facilitated in all of the Denny’s company-owned restaurants by the use
of point-of-sale, or POS, systems which transmit detailed sales reports, payroll data and periodic inventory
information for management review.

Marketing & Advertising

Our marketing department manages contributions from both company-owned and franchised units providing
for an integrated marketing and advertising process to promote our brand including:

*  media;

* menu pricing strategy;

* interior/exterior building design; and

* specialized promotions to help differentiate Denny’s from our competitors.

Media advertising is primarily product oriented, featuring consistent, high-quality entrees presented to

communicate great food at great values to our guests. Our advertising is conducted, depending on the market,
through:

» television advertising;

e radio;

¢« outdoor; and

*  print advertising.

During 2003, we transitioned from local television advertising to national television advertising. This

decision improves the impact and cost efficiency of our media and ensures that each area of operation receives
television coverage.

Denny’s integrated marketing and advertising approach reaches out to all consumers. Community outreach
programs are designed to enhance our diversity efforts. We use sophisticated consumer marketing research
techniques to measure customer satisfaction and customers’ evolving expectations.
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Franchising

Over the past several years, the expansion of our franchise system has resulted from a combination of new
unit development and the sale of company-owned units to franchisees. Franchisees opened 17, 38 and 46 units in
2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively. During 2002 and 2001, respectively, we sold 13 and 59 units to franchisees.
No units were sold to franchisees in 2003. Although we expect to continue selling company-owned units to
franchisees on a limited basis, we expect the growth of our franchise system to occur primarily through new
franchise unit openings. Our franchisees closed 49, 68 and 57 underperforming restaurants during 2003, 2002
and 2001, respectively.

Our criteria to become a Denny’s franchisee include minimum liquidity and net worth requirements and
appropriate operational experience. The initial fee for a single Denny’s franchise is $40,000 and the royalty
payment is 4% of gross sales. Additionally, our franchisees contribute up to 3% of gross sales for advertising.

A network of regional franchise operations managers oversee our franchised restaurants to ensure
compliance with brand standards as well as to promote operational excellence. Each franchised unit is visited a
minimum of one to two times per quarter by these managers.

Site Selection

The success of any restaurant is influenced significantly by its location. Our real estate and franchise
development groups work closely with franchisees and real estate brokers to identify sites which meet specific
standards. Sites are evaluated on the basis of a variety of factors, including but not limited to:

* demographics;

» traffic patterns;

»  visibility;

+ building constraints;

e competition;

* environmental restrictions; and

* proximity to high-traffic consumer activities.

Capital Expenditures

We invested significantly in our restaurant facilities in 2003, 2002 and 2001 in order to provide a well-
maintained, comfortable environment and improve the overall customer experience. During 2003, 2002 and
2001, we spent approximately $32 million, $42 million and $41 million, respectively, in capital expenditures and
$18 million, $19 million and $28 million, respectively, for repairs and maintenance of company-owned units.

We have remodeled approximately 180 company-owned restaurants in the past three years. In addition, our
franchisees have remodeled approximately 200 restaurants in the past three years. We believe our remodel
program appeals to existing and new franchisees, which is integral to the completion of the program systemwide.
The normal components of a remodel include, among other things, new signs, painting of the building exterior
and interior, wallpaper, carpet, chairs, tables and booths. During 2003, the average cost to remodel a company-
owned unit was approximately $160,000.

We have an ongoing restaurant evaluation process to manage the profitability of company-owned
restaurants and to ensure that capital resources are effectively allocated to our company-owned units. As part of
this process, we closed 7, 45 and 61 underperforming restaurants during 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively, that
we concluded did not warrant additional capital investment.
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Product Sources and Availability

We have a centralized purchasing program which is designed to ensure uniform product quality as well as to
minimize food, beverage and supply costs. Our size provides significant purchasing power which often enables
us to obtain products at favorable prices from nationally recognized manufacturers. OQur purchasing department
administers our programs for the procurement of food and non-food products to the benefit of both company-
owned and franchised restaurants.

While nearly all products are contracted for by our purchasing department, the majority are purchased and
distributed through Meadowbrook Meat Company, or MBM, under a distribution contract which expires
September 7, 2005. MBM distributes restaurant products and supplies to Denny’s from nearly 300 vendors,
representing approximately 85% of our restaurant product and supply purchases. We believe that satisfactory
sources of supply are generally available for all the items regularly used by our restaurants, and we have not
experienced any material shortages of food, equipment, or other products which are necessary to our restaurant
operations,

Seasonality

Our business is moderately seasonal. Restaurant sales are generally greater in the second and third calendar
quarters (April through September) than in the first and fourth calendar quarters (October through March).
Additionally, severe weather, storms and similar conditions may impact sales volumes seasonally in some
operating regions. Occupancy and other operating costs, which remain relatively constant, have a
disproportionately greater negative effect on operating results during quarters with lower restaurant sales.

Trademarks and Service Marks

Either directly or through wholly owned subsidiaries, we have certain trademarks and service marks
registered with the United States Patent and Trademark Office and in international jurisdictions, including
Denny’s® and Grand Slam Breakfast®. We consider our trademarks and service marks important to the
identification of our restaurants and believe they are of material importance to the conduct of our business.
Domestic trademark and service mark registrations are renewable at various intervals from 10 to 20 years, while
international trademark and service mark registrations have various durations from 5 to 20 years. We generally
intend to renew trademarks and service marks which come up for renewal. We own or have rights to all
trademarks we believe are material to our restaurant operations. In addition, we have registered various domain
names on the Internet that incorporate certain of our trademarks and service marks, and believe these domain
name registrations are an integral part of our identity. From time to time, we may resort to legal measures to
defend and protect the use of our intellectual property.

Competition

The restaurant industry can be divided into three main segments: full-service restaurants, quick-service
restaurants, and other varied establishments. Full-service restaurants include the mid-scale, casual dining and
upscale (fine dining) segments. A large portion of mid-scale business comes from three categories — family
style, family steak and cafeteria — and is characterized by complete meals, menu variety and moderate prices
(85 to $8 average check). The family style category, which includes Denny’s, consists of a small number of
national chains, many local and regional chains, and thousands of independent operators. The casual dining
segment, which typically has higher menu prices ($8 to $16 average check) and generally offers alcoholic
beverages, includes a small number of national chains, regional chains and independent operators. The quick-
service segment is characterized by lower average checks (generally $3 to $35), portable meals, fast service and
convenience.

The restaurant industry is highly competitive, and competition among major companies that own or operate
restaurant chains is especially intense. Restaurants compete on the basis of name recognition and advertising; the
price, quality, variety, and perceived value of their food offerings; the quality of their customer service; and the
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convenience and attractiveness of their facilities. In addition, despite recent changes in economic conditions,
competition for qualified restaurant-level personnel remains high.

Denny’s direct competition in the family-style segment is primarily a collection of regional chains. Denny’s
also competes with quick service restaurants as they attempt to upgrade their menus with entrée salads, new
breakfast offerings and extended hours. We believe that Denny’s has a number of competitive strengths including
strong brand name recognition, well-located restaurants, and market penetration. We benefit from economies of
scale in a variety of areas including advertising, purchasing, distribution and field supervision. Additionally, we
believe that Denny’s has competitive strengths in the value, variety, and quality of our food products, and in the
quality and training of our employees. See Exhibit 99 to this Form 10-K for certain additional factors relating to
our competition in the restaurant industry.

Economic, Market and Other Conditions

The restaurant industry is affected by many factors, including changes in national, regional and local
economic conditions affecting consumer spending, the political environment including acts of war and terrorism,
changes in customer travel patterns, changes in socio-demographic characteristics of areas where restaurants are
located, changes in consumer tastes and preferences, increases in the number of restaurants, unfavorable trends
affecting restaurant operations such as rising wage rates, healthcare costs and utilities expenses and unfavorable
weather.

Government Regulations

We and our franchisees are subject to local, state and federal laws and regulations governing various aspects
of the restaurant business, including, but not limited to:

* health;

e sanitation;

» land use, sign restrictions and environmental matters;
« safety;

+ disabled persons’ access to facilities;

» the sale of alcoholic beverages; and

* hiring and employment practices.

The operation of our franchise system is also subject to regulations enacted by a number of states and rules
promulgated by the Federal Trade Commission. We believe we are in material compliance with applicable laws
and regulations, but we cannot predict the effect on operations of the enactment of additional regulations in the
future.

We are also subject to federal and state laws governing matters such as minimum wage, overtime and other
working conditions. At December 31, 2003, a substantial number of our employees were paid the minimum
wage. Accordingly, increases in the minimum wage or decreases in the allowable tip credit (which reduces the
minimum wage paid to tipped employees in certain states) increase our labor costs. This is especially true for our
operations in California, where there is no tip credit. The California minimum wage increased from $6.25 per
hour to $6.75 per hour on January 1, 2002. Employers must pay the higher of the federal or state minimum wage.
We have attempted to offset increases in the minimum wage through pricing and various cost control efforts;
however, there can be no assurance that we can continue to pass on such cost increases to our customers.

Environmental Matters

Federal, state and local environmental laws and regulations have not historically had a material impact on
our operations; however, we cannot predict the effect of possible future environmental legislation or regulations
on our operations.




Executive Officers of the Registrant

The follewing table sets forth information with respect to each executive officer of Denny’s.

Name A_gf
Janis S. Emplit ............. 48
Gustave E. Gelardi .......... 57
AndrewF. Green............ 48
Craig E. Herman ............ 52
Margaret L. Jenkins ......... 52
Nelson J. Marchioli . ......... 54
RhondaJ. Parish ............ 47
Mounir N. Sawda ........... 46
Linda G. Traylor ............ 52
Samuel M. Wilensky ......... 46

Employees

Current Principal Qccupation or Employment
and Five-Year Employment History

Senior Vice President for Strategic Services of Denny’s (June
2003-present); Senior Vice President and Chief Information Officer of
Denny’s (1999-May 2003); Vice President, Information Systems of
Advantica (1997-1998).

Division Vice President, Operations of Denny’s, Inc. (2001-present);
Director, Operations Projects of Burger King (1997-1999).

Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of Denny’s
(2001-present); Senior Vice President, Planning and Corporate
Controller of Advantica (1998-2001); Vice President, Planning and
Corporate Controller of Advantica (1997-1998).

Division Vice President, Operations of Denny’s, Inc. (2001-present);
District Manager, Tim Hortons (2000-2001); Operating Partner,
Regional Partner of Bruegger’s Bagels (1993-1999).

Senior Vice President, Chief Marketing Officer of Denny’s, Inc.
(2002-present); Vice President of Marketing of El Pollo Loco, Inc.
(1998-2002).

Chief Executive Officer and President of Denny’s (2001-present);
President of El Pollo Loco, Inc. (1997-2001).

Executive Vice President of Denny’s (1998-present); General Counsel
and Secretary of Denny’s (1995-present); Senior Vice President of
Advantica (1995-1998).

Vice President, Franchise and Development of Denny’s, Inc.
(2001-present); Senior Director, Construction and Facilities of Denny’s,
Inc. (1998-2001); Director, Franchise, Real Estate and Construction of
Denny’s, Inc. (1998).

Senior Vice President, Human Resources of Denny’s (2001-present);
Vice President, Human Resources, Planning and Development of
Advantica (1995-2000).

Division Vice President, Franchise Operations of Denny’s, Inc.
(2001-present); Regional Vice President, Franchise Operations of
Denny’s, Inc. (2000-2001); Regional Director, Franchise Operations of
Denny’s, Inc. (1999-2000); Regional Director, Company Operations of
Denny’s, Inc. (1994-1999).

At December 31, 2003, we had approximately 27,000 employees, none of whom are subject to collective
bargaining agreements. Many of our restaurant employees work part-time, and many are paid at or slightly above
minimum wage levels. As is characteristic of the restaurant industry, we experience a high level of turnover
among our restaurant employees. We have experienced no significant work stoppages, and we consider our
relations with our employees to be satisfactory.




Item 2. Properties

Most Denny’s restaurants are free-standing facilities, with property sizes averaging approximately one acre.
The restaurant buildings average 4,800 square feet, allowing them to accommodate an average of 140 guests. The
number and location of our restaurants as of December 31, 2003 are presented below:

Company  Franchised/

State/Country Owned Licensed
Alabama . ... .. e 3 1
AlaSKa ... e e e — 4
AIZONA . ottt e e 24 49
ATKANSAS .« . i e e e — 11
California ... e e e 158 240
Colorado ... e e e 8 20
L0703 11 714 1011 | O — 8
Districtof Columbia . ... .ot i e i e e — 1
Delaware . ... o e e 3 —
Florida . ..o o e e e 59 127
GOTZIA . vttt e e e — 14
Hawaii . ... 4 3
Idaho . ..o e e — 6
NOIS o e e e 34 21
Indiana ... ... 3 31
fowa o e e — 1
Kansas . ..o e — 9
Kentucky ... o 6 5
Lomisiana . .. ..o e e e 5 4
MaInE ..o e — 8
Maryland .. ... ... 7 18
MassaChUsSetts ... ..o i i e e — 7
Michigan . ... . 22 5
MINNESOtA .. ..ottt e e e 3 15
MisSiSSIPPL . ..o 2 —
% 117 o U 5 38
MoONtANA . ..o e — 4
Nebraska ... ..o i e e — 1
Nevada . ... e e e 9 11
New Hampshire ......... ... . . i — 3
N W JeIS ey . oottt e e e e 6 7
New MeXiCo ..ottt e e e e e 2 19
New YOrK . o 39 13
NorthCarolina ........ .. i i e e e 4 14
NorthDakota .. ... e e e — 3
ORI0 . 21 15
OKIahoma ... ittt e i e e e e 3 22
L) =72 ) ¢ — 24
Pennsylvania . ..... ... e 38 6
RhodeIsland .. .....c.o it i e e e — 2
South Carolina ... oot e e e e 10 3
South DaKota . . ..o e e — 1
B3 11T 3 1
RS ot e ettt e e 40 117
Utah . o e — 22
B 1o 11 — 2
VIIINIa . oo e 9 15
Washington .. ... .. e 21 40
West VILZINIA . ..ottt e e — 2
WVESCOMSITL « v vt v r et e e et st e et e e s 10 9
GUAI . . . e e e —_ 2
Puerto RICO ... . e e e e — 11
Canada ... .. ... e — 51
Other International . ........ ... . . .. e 11
Total ... e 561 1,077




Of the 561 restaurants we operated as of December 31, 2003, we owned the land and building of 138, owned
the building and leased the land of 26, and leased both the land and building of 397. We also owned the land and
building of 102 franchised restaurants and leased the land and building of an additional 265 franchised
restaurants, which we leased or subleased to our franchisees.

In additien to the restaurants, we own an 18-story, 187,000 square foot office tower in Spartanburg, South
Carolina, which serves as our corporate headquarters. Our corporate offices currently occupy approximately 15
floors of the tower, with the balance leased to others.

See Note 7 to our consolidated financial statements for information concerning encumbrances on some of
our properties.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

There are various claims and pending legal actions against or indirectly involving us, including actions
concerned with civil rights of employees and customers, other employment related matters, taxes, sales of
franchise rights and businesses and other matters. Qur ultimate legal and financial liability with respect to these
matters cannot be estimated with certainty. However, we believe, based on our examination of these matters and
our experience to date, that the ultimate liability, if any, in excess of amounts already provided for these matters
in our consolidated financial statements is not likely to have a material adverse effect on our results of
operations, financial position or cash flows.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

Not applicable.



PARTII

Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters

Our common stock and warrants are listed under the symbols “DNYY” and “DNYYW,” respectively, and
are eligible for trading on the Over-the-Counter Bulletin Board, or the OTCBB. As of March 15, 2004,
41,128,054 shares of common stock and 236,104 warrants were outstanding, and there were approximately 5,350
record and beneficial holders of common stock and 23 warrant holders of record. We have never paid dividends
on our common equity securities. Furthermore, restrictions contained in the instruments governing our
outstanding indebtedness prohibit us from paying dividends on the common stock in the future. See
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations — Liquidity and
Capital Resources” and Note 7 to our consolidated financial statements.

The following tables list the high and low closing sales prices of the common stock for each quarter of fiscal
years 2003 and 2002. The sales prices were obtained from the OTCBB®, The prices quoted for the OTCBB
reflect inter-dealer prices, without retail mark-up, mark-down or commission and may not necessarily represent
actval transactions.

E& Low

2003

FArSt QUATTEr . . .ottt e e e e e $0.84 $0.36
Second QUATtEr . .. ... ... 0.75 0.47
Third quarter . ... ... i e 0.69 0.26
Fourthquarter ...... ... ... . ... 0.49 0.30
2002

First QUaTTEr . . ...ttt $1.16  $0.63
Second qUArter ... ... .. e 1.20 0.72
Third qUarter ... ... i e 1.06 0.81
Fourthquarter ... ... ... ... . . 0.85 0.57




Item 6. Selected Financial Data

Set forth below are certain selected financial data for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2003, December
25, 2002, December 26, 2001, December 27, 2000 and December 29, 1999. Such data generally has been derived
from our consolidated financial statements for such periods, which have been audited. The following information
should be read in conjunction with our consolidated financial statements and the notes thereto and
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” presented elsewhere
in this report.

Fiscal Year Ended
December 31, December 25, December 26, December 27, December 29,
2003 (a) 2002 2001 2000 1999

(In millions, except ratios and per share amounts)
Income Statement Data:

Operatingrevenue .................. $ 940.9 $ 948.6 $1,039.7 $1,155.2 $1,200.2
Operating income (loss) (b) . .......... 48.4 49.6 (19.7) 0.3) (195.9)
Income (loss) from continuing operations

() e (31.5) 7.5 (88.5) (82.5) (275.8)
Basic and diluted income (loss) per share

from continuing operations ......... 0.77) 0.19 (2.21) (2.06) (6.89)

Cash dividends per common share (d) . . . — —_ — — —

Balance Sheet Data (at end of period):

Currentassets (&) ................... $ 323 $ 337 $ 40.1 $ 564 § 3795
Working capital deficit (e){f) .......... (160.5) (119.1) {147.5) (170.6) (197.0)
Net property and equipment . .......... 297.0 3247 362.4 4253 510.9
Totalassets ................. e 506.7 551.5 607.3 745.3 1,236.3
Long-term debt, excluding current

portion ............c...iiiiii... 538.3 591.5 645.1 593.7 615.4

Cash Flow Data:

Net cash flows provided by (used in)

operating activities . ............... 26.6 8.8 82 (8.4) (31.1)
Net cash flows provided by (used in)

investing activities (g) ............. (13.9) 18.9 (75.1) 204.8 86.7
Net cash flows provided by (used in)

financing activities (h) ............. (11.0) (28.7) 46.3 (335.0) 47.9)

(a) The fiscal year ended December 31, 2003 includes 53 weeks of operations as compared to 52 weeks for all
other years presented. We estimate that the additional, or 53%, week added approximately $22.4 million of
operating revenue in 2003,

(b) Operating income (loss) includes restructuring and impairment charges of $4.6 million, $8.1 million, $30.5
million, $19.0 million and $136.5 million for 2003, 2002, 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively. For a
discussion of these charges, see “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations — Results of Operations” and Notes 2 and 4 to our consolidated financial statements.
Additionally, as a result of adopting Statement of Financial Accounting No. 142, or SFAS 142, “Goodwill
and Other Intangible Assets,” at the beginning of fiscal year 2002, we are no longer amortizing goodwill and
trade names. For a discussion of the adoption of SFAS 142, see Note 3 to our consolidated financial
statements.

(c) We have classified as discontinued operations restaurant subsidiaries El Pollo Loco, Inc., or EPL, and FRD.
EPL was sold in 1999. We completed the divestiture of FRD in 2002. See Note 14 to our consolidated
financial statements.

(d) Our bank facilities have prohibited, and our public debt indentures have significantly limited, distributions
and dividends on Denny’s Corporation (and its predecessors’) common equity securities. See Note 7 to our
consolidated financial statements.
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(e) The current assets and working capital deficit amounts presented exclude net liabilities of discontinued
operations of $15.1 million as of December 26, 2001, $69.4 million as of December 27, 2000 and $54.0
million as of December 29, 1999 related to FRD. We completed the divestiture of FRD in 2002. See
Note 14 to our consolidated financial statements.

(f) A negative working capital position is not unusual for a restaurant operating company. The increase in
working capital deficit from December 25, 2002 to December 31, 2003 is primarily attributable to the
reclassification of our term note of $40.0 million and revolving loans under our credit facility of $11.1
million to current liabilities as a result of their December 20, 2004 expiration date. See Note 7 to our
consolidated financial statements. The decrease in working capital deficit from December 26, 2001 to
December 25, 2002 is primarily related to the use of cash on hand and borrowings under the credit facility to
satisfy current liabilities and the reduction of company-owned units from store closures. The decrease in
working capital deficit from December 27, 2000 to December 26, 2001 is primarily related to the use of
cash on hand and borrowings under the credit facility to satisfy current liabilities, the reduction in capital
lease obligations resulting in a nonoperating gain recorded in 2001 and the reduction of company-owned
units from refranchising activity and store closures. The decrease in working capital deficit from December
29, 1999 to December 27, 2000 is primarily attributable to the increase in Denny’s refranchising activity in
2000.

(g) Net cash flows used in investing activities for 2002 include proceeds of $39.4 million of receipts from
discontinued operations resulting primarily from the divestiture of FRD on July 10, 2002. For 2001, net cash
flows used in investing activities include $53.3 million of advances to discontinued operations. For 2000,
net cash flows from investing activities include $158.7 million of proceeds from the maturity of investments
securing our in-substance defeased debt (see (h) below). For 1999, net cash flows provided by investing
activities include net proceeds of $109.4 million from the sale.of EPL.

(h) Net cash flows used in financing activities for 2000 include the repayment of the $160.0 million principal
amount of Denny’s mortgage notes and the repayment of the $153.3 million principal amount of our in-
substance defeased debt through the use of the proceeds described in (g) above.

Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The following discussion should be read in conjunction with “Selected Financial Data,” and our
consolidated financial statements and other more detailed financial information appearing elsewhere herein.

Overview

Denny’s revenues are primarily derived from two sources: the sale of food and beverages at our company-
owned restaurants and the collection of royalties and fees from restaurants operated by our franchisees under the
Denny’s name.

Sales at our company-owned restaurants are affected by many factors including competition, economic
conditions affecting consumer spending, the political environment including acts of war and terrorism, weather
and changes in tastes and preferences. Additionally, the change in the number of company-owed restaurants
greatly affects our revenues. Company restaurant sales are generally transacted in cash or credit cards.

Changes in company-owned same store sales were as follows for 2003 as compared with 2002:

o @ o o ym
Same-store sales increase (decrease) ............ 0.4)% 0.6% (1.2)% 3.0% 0.2%
Guest check average increase .................. 24% 39% 45% 20% 32%
Guest count increase (decrease) ................ 8% 4.3)% 5.4)% 1.0% (2.9%

The first half of the year was particularly challenging for the restaurant industry as economic concerns, the
war with Iraq and harsh weather conditions resulted in lower guest traffic at Denny’s and many other restaurant
chains. During the first half of the year, we focused our marketing message on driving guests during our lunch,
dinner and late night dayparts. Although we were successful in improving sales during these dayparts, we lost
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more guests than anticipated during breakfast. In response to the sales results for the first half, we launched a
new media campaign in the third quarter which promoted a choice of three “Complete Breakfasts,” each for
$4.99. This promotion built on two core strengths of the Denny’s brand — breakfast and value. Our same-store
sales and guest counts improved considerably during the third quarter as sales recovered from negative 4.9% in
July to positive 1.8% in September, with seven straight weeks of positive same-store sales to close the quarter.
Denny’s same-store sales and guest counts continued to improve in the fourth quarter. The increase in our guest
check average was from the effects of price increases in 2002 and 2003 and from customers trading to higher-
priced menu items. During the second half of the year, we were able to leverage our breakfast credibility and
began to increase guest counts across all dayparts.

Our costs of company restaurant sales are exposed to volatility in two main areas: product costs and payroll
and benefit costs. Many of the products sold in our restaurants are affected by commodity pricing and are,
therefore, subject to price volatility. This volatility is caused by factors that are fundamentally outside of our
control and are often unpredictable. In general, we purchase food products based on market prices. However,
many of our purchasing agreements contain features that minimize price volatility by establishing price ceilings
and/or floors. While we will address commodity cost increases which are significant and considered long-term in
nature by adjusting menu prices, competitive circumstances can limit such actions, causing product costs as a
percentage of sales to increase as they did in 2003. While we continuously monitor food costs, we expect that
commodity prices will continue to be a challenge in 2004.

Payroll and benefit costs’ volatility primarily results from changes in minimum wage rates and increases in
labor related expenses such as medical benefit costs and workers’ compensation costs. Additionally, declines in
guest counts and investments in store level labor can cause payroll and benefit costs to increase as a percentage of
sales, at least for short to moderate periods of time. During 2003, we invested significantly in labor by adding both
management and staff labor to improve our hospitality and customer service and to ensure we had sufficient staff to
handle our peak traffic periods. In the second half of 2003, we improved our labor efficiency, resulting in cost
improvements, while continuing to maintain sufficiently staffed restaurants. Higher medical benefit costs and
workers’ compensation expenses have also had a negative effect on earnings. For 2004, we have implemented new
medical plans that we expect to have a positive impact on our total benefit costs compared with 2003.

Revenues from the collection of royalties and fees from franchisees are generally affected by the number of
franchised restaurants and the sales of these restaurants. Franchise and license revenue include royalties that are
based on a percentage of franchisee sales, initial franchise fees and occupancy revenue related to restaurants
leased or subleased to franchisees. Franchise and licensing revenues are generally billed and collected from
franchisees on a weekly basis which minimizes the impact of bad debts on our costs of franchise and license
revenues. Costs of franchise and license revenues include occupancy costs related to restaurants leased or
subleased to franchisees; direct costs consisting primarily of payroll and benefit costs of franchise operations
personnel; bad debt expense; and marketing expenses net of marketing contributions received from franchisees.
The composition of the franchise portfolio and the nature of individual lease arrangements have a significant
impact on franchise occupancy revenue, as well as the related franchise occupancy expense.

With approximately $593.5 million of total long-term debt, Denny’s is considered to be a highly leveraged
company. We are dependent upon our senior secured credit facility, or credit facility, in order to provide
sustained liquidity for continuing operations and to meet our anticipated cash requirements and fund capital
expenditures. As a result of the negative sales trend in the first half of the year and the effects of higher operating
costs throughout the year, profitability and cash flows were below our expectations for 2003. Accordingly, we
were required to obtain an amendment to our credit facility to provide less restrictive financial covenants
effective for the quarter ended June 25, 2003 and for the remaining term of the facility. In September, we
amended and restated our $125 million revolving credit facility to include $40 million of term loans, thereby
increasing the aggregate commitments to $165 million. We applied the $40 million term loan proceeds to pay
down outstanding revolving loans thus enhancing our liquidity position.

Our credit facility expires on December 20, 2004. We believe that our forecasted cash flow from operations
for 2004, combined with our capacity for additional borrowings under our credit facility, will enable us to meet
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our anticipated cash requirements and fund capital expenditures until the expiration of our credit facility and
through the end of 2004 under the assumption that we successfully negotiate a replacement credit facility. We
believe that we will be able to successfully refinance our credit facility before it expires. If we are unable to
negotiate a replacement credit facility, our financial condition and results of operations will be materially
affected. See Liquidity and Capital Resources.

We continue to explore possible alternatives to improve our long-term liquidity and capital structure. To
assist in this regard, we retained UBS Securities LLC as a financial advisor. We have not made a determination at
this time whether we will ultimately seek to implement any specific alternative, and there can be no assurance
that, if we do, our efforts will be successful.

Statements of Operations

. Fiscal Year Ended
December 31, December 25, December 26,
2003 (a) 2002 2001
(Dollars in thousands)
Revenue:
Company restaurant sales ................. ... oiiii.. $851,853 90.5% $858,569 90.5% $ 949,180 91.3%
Franchise and licenserevenue . ..............c.covueinennn.. 89,092 9.5% 90,015 9.5% 90,548 8.7%
Total operating revenue .................ovvuiounn... 940,945 100.0% 948,584 100.0% 1,039,728 100.0%
Costs of company restaurant sales (b): v
Product Costs ... ... e 219,193 259% 205,036 23.9% 237,721 250%
Payrolland benefits ....... ... . .. ... ..ol 368,641 43.3% 361,483 42.1% 382,864 40.3%
OCCUPANCY ..ottt 49,033 5.8% 49,198 5.7% 55,941 5.9%
Other operating eXpenses . . ......vvvuutnin e 118,563 13.9% 122,491 14.3% 142,281 15.0%
Total costs of company restaurantsales ................. 755,430 887% 738,208 86.0% 818,807 86.3%
Costs of franchise and licenserevenue (b) ... ...... ... ... ...t 27,125 30.4% 28,576 31.7% 32,262 35.6%
General and administrative eXpenses . .. .......c..ovveveennnnn. .. 51,268 5.4% 50,001 5.3% 66,920 6.4%
Amortization of goodwill and other intangible assets with Indefinite
VS ottt e e — — — — 31,553 3.0%
Depreciation and other amortization ................. ... ..... 60,000 6.4% 83,251 8.8% 92,778 8.9%
Restructuring charges and exitcosts ........................... 613 0.1% 3,521 0.4% 16,863 1.6%
Impairmentcharges . ............0 ..o 3,986 0.4% 4,556 0.5% 13,630 1.3%
Gains on disposition of assets and other,net ..................... (5,844) 0.6)% 9,127) 1.0)% (13,340) (1.3)%
Total operating costs and expenses .................... 892,578 949% 898,986 94.8% 1,059,473 101.9%
Operating income (I0SS) .. ...t 48,367 5.1% 49,598 52% (19,745) 1.9%
Other expenses:
InteresteXpense, Nt ... ...t 78,190 8.3% 76,401 8.1% 73,235 7.0%
Other nonoperating expense (income), net . ................. 901 0.1% (32,915) (3.5)% (6,007) (0.6)%
Total other eXpenses, Net . .......c.coururerinirenen .. 79,091 8.4% 43,486 4.6% 67,228 6.5%
Income (loss) before income taxes . . ........covivinveinneenn. (30,724) (3.3)% 6,112 0.6% (86,973) 8.4)%
Provision for (benefit from) income taxes ....................... 759 0.1% (1,422) 0.2)% 1,571 0.2%
Income (loss) from continuing operations ....................... (31,483) (3.3)% 7,534 0.8% (88,544) (8.5)%

Discontinued operations
Income from operations of discontinued operations net of income
tax benefit: $3,500 ... ... — — 4,040 0.4% — —
Gain on sale of discontinued operations, net of income tax

provision: $160 ... ... — — 56,562 6.0% — —
Netincome (10SS) .. oo v vttt et e $(31,483) 3.3)% $ 68,136 72% $ (88,544) (8.5)%
Other Data:
Company-owned average unitsales . .. ................c........ $ 1,520 $ 1461 $ 1,420
Same-store sales increase (decrease) (company-owned) (c)(d) . ... ... 0.2% (1.0Y% 2.7%
Guest check averageincrease (d) .. ............. ... ... .. 3.2% 1.8% 1.7%
Guest count increase (decrease) (d) .................. ... 2.9% 2.8)% 0.9%




(a) The fiscal year ended December 31, 2003 includes 53 weeks of operations as compared to 52 weeks for all other years presented. We
estimate that the additional, or 53, week added approximately $22.4 million of total operating revenue in 2003.

(b) Costs of company restaurant sales percentages are as a percentage of company restaurant sales. Costs of franchise and license revenue
percentages are as a percentage of franchise and license revenue. All other percentages are as a percentage of total operating revenue.

(c) Same-store sales include sales from restaurants that were open the same days in both the current year and prior year. For purposes of
calculating same-store sales, the 53~ week of 2003 was compared to the 15t week of 2003.

(d) Prior year amounts have not been restated for 2003 comparable units.

Unit Activity
Ending Ending
Units Units Franchised Units
December 25, Opened/ Units Units December 31,
2002 Acquired  Reacquired Closed 2003
Company-owned
restaurants ........... 566 1 1 ©) 561
Franchised and licensed
restaurants . .......... 1,110 1_2 Q ) @) 1,077
1,676 1_8_ — @) 1,638
2003 vs. 2002

Company Restaurant Operations

During 2003 we realized a 0.2% increase in same store sales, comprised of a 2.9% decrease in guest counts
and a 3.2% increase in guest check average. Company restaurant sales decreased $6.7 million (0.8%). The
decrease would have been substantially larger except for the inclusion of the fifty-third week representing
approximately $20.7 million of company restaurant sales. Lower sales resulted primarily from a 25 equivalent-
unit decrease in company-owned restaurants partially offset by the fifty-third week of company operations and
the 0.2% increase in same-store sales for the current year. The decrease in company-owned restaurants resulted
primarily from store closures.

Total costs of company restaurant sales as a percentage of company restaurant sales increased to 88.7%
from 86.0%. Product costs increased to 25.7% from 23.9%, including the impact of a $4.9 million reduction of
deferred gain amortization related to the sale of former distribution subsidiaries in previous years. This deferred
gain became fully amortized in September of 2003. Excluding the amortization of deferred gains for both years,
product costs as a percentage of sales were 26.0% in 2003 and 24.8% in 2002. This increase in product cost
resulted from unfavorable commodity costs, especially pork and beef, quality improvements to existing products
and a shift in menu mix. Payroll and benefits increased to 43.3% from 42.1% due to increased restaurant staffing
levels aimed at improving customer satisfaction, higher workers’ compensation and medical costs and higher
wage rates. Occupancy costs increased slightly to 5.8% from 5.7% of company restaurant sales. Other operating
expenses were comprised of the following amounts and percentages of company restaurant sales:

Fiscal Year Ended
December 31, December 25,
2003 2002
(Dollars in Thousands)
Utties ..o i e e s $ 38,410 45% $ 36,443 4.2%
Repairs and maintenance . .................... 17,984 2.1% 19,471 2.3%
Marketing .........cc.oiiiiiii i 28,995 3.4% 35,273 4.1%
Other ... ... i e e 33,174 3.9% 31,304 3.7%
Other operating expenses ................ $118,563  13.9% $122,491 14.3%



The decrease in marketing expenses as a percentage of company restaurant sales resulted primarily from
lower contributions to the marketing budget by company-owned restaurants. As a percentage of sales, other
operating expenses were not significantly affected by the 53 week.

Franchise Operations

Franchise and license revenue and costs of franchise and license revenue were comprised of the following
amounts and percentages of franchise and license revenue:

Fiscal Year Ended
December 31, December 25,
2003 2002
(Dollars in Thousands)
Royalties and initial fees ....................... $56,059 62.9% $56,039 62.3%
OCcupanCy revenue .. ......c..veeernenneennan. 33,033 371% 33976 37.7%
Franchise and licenserevenue . .............. 89,092 100.0% 90,015 100.0%
OCcuUpanCy COSES ..o vvvre e ie e 21,704  243% 22,613 25.1%
Other direct costs . . . .. P 5,421 6.1% 5,963 6.6%
Costs of franchise and license revenue ........ $27,125 30.4% $28,576 31.7%

The revenue decrease of $0.9 million (1.0%) resulted from a net 33-unit decrease in franchised and licensed
units due to unit closures and a decrease in initial franchise fees on fewer franchise restaurant openings, partially
offset by approximately $1.7 million of revenues recorded for the fifty-third week of franchise activity in 2003.

Costs of franchise and license revenue decreased $1.5 million (5.1%) as a result of the decrease in
franchised and licensed units and a reduction in administrative fees. As a percentage of franchise and license
revenues, these costs decreased to 30.4% for the year ended December 31, 2003 from 31.7% for the year ended
December 25, 2002.

Other Operating Costs and Expenses

Other operating costs and expenses such as general and administrative expenses and depreciation and
amortization expense relate to both company and franchise operations.

General and administrative expenses increased $1.3 million (2.5%) compared to the year ended December
25, 2002. The increase resulted primarily from the elimination of management and support service fees paid by
FRD due to its divestiture in the prior year (approximately $6.8 million) and the incurrence of costs related to
exploring possible alternatives to improve our long-term liquidity and capital structure (approximately $1.8
million). These increases were partially offset by reductions in corporate overhead related to organizational
changes.

Depreciation and other amortization decreased $23.3 million primarily resuiting from certain assets
becoming fully depreciated in January 2003. In January 1998, certain assets were revalued and assigned a five
year life as a result of the company’s emergence from bankruptcy.

Restructuring charges and exit costs of $0.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2003 reflect the
recording of restructuring charges related to the elimination of approximately sixty out-of-restaurant support staff
positions (approximately $2.2 million) partially offset by the reversal of rent obligations resulting from our
release from the remaining lease term of our former corporate headquarters in California (approximately $1.6
million). Exit costs of $3.5 million recorded in 2002 primarily represent additional provisions for future rent
obligations on Denny’s former corporate headquarters facility in California due to the bankruptcy of our most
significant subtenant. ‘
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Impairment charges of $4.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2003 and $4.6 million for the year
ended December 25, 2002 were recorded and relate to the identification of certain underperforming restaurants.

Gains on disposition of assets and other, net of $5.8 million in 2003 and $9.1 million in 2002 primarily
represent gains on cash sales of surplus properties.

Operating income was $48.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2003 compared with $49.6 million
for the year ended December 25, 2002.

Interest expense, net, for the year ended December 31, 2003 was comprised of $79.5 million of interest
expense offset by $1.3 million of interest income compared with $79.8 million of interest expense offset by $3.4
million of interest income for the year ended December 25, 2002. The decrease in interest expense resulted from
the effects of our senior note exchanges and the effects of a reduction in discounted accrued exit cost liabilities,
partially offset by higher deferred financing cost amortization related to our credit facility and a 53t week of
interest in 2003. The decrease in interest income resulted from the repayment in 2002 of the credit facility with
FRD Acquisition Co., our former subsidiary (with respect to which Denny’s was the lender).

Other nonoperating expense, net of $0.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2003 primarily
represents the loss on the early extinguishment of $3.0 million of industrial revenue bonds. Other nonoperating
income of $32.9 million for year ended December 25, 2002 primarily represents a gain related to the issuance of
our 12%1% Senior Notes due 2007, or 12%4% Notes, in exchange for a portion of our 11%2% Senior Notes due
2008, or 11 ¥4% Notes.

The provision for (benefit from) income taxes was $0.8 million and $(1.4) million for the year ended
December 31, 2003 and December 25, 2002, respectively. Included in income taxes for the year ended December
25, 2002 was a $2.7 million benefit related to the enactment of H.R. 3090, the Job Creation and Worker
Assistance Act of 2002. Excluding this benefit, we recorded a provision for income taxes of $1.3 million for the
year ended December 25, 2002. These provisions for income taxes primarily represent gross receipts-based state
and foreign income taxes which do not directly fluctuate in relation to changes in loss before income taxes. We
have provided valuation allowances related to any benefits from income taxes resulting from the application of a
statutory tax rate to our net operating losses. Accordingly, no additional (benefit from) or provision for income
taxes has been reported for the periods presented. In establishing our valuation allowance, we have taken into
consideration certain tax planning strategies involving the sale of appreciated properties in order to alter the
timing of the expiration of certain net operating loss, or NOL, carryforwards in the event they were to expire
unused. Such strategies, if implemented in future periods, are considered by us to be prudent and feasible in light
of current circumstances. Circumstances may change in future periods such that we can no longer conclude that
such tax planning strategies are prudent and feasible, which would require us to record additional deferred tax
valuation allowances. Without such tax planning strategies, our valuation allowance would have increased by
approximately $11 million. See Note 9 to our consolidated financial statements.

As aresult of the divestiture of FRD, we recorded a gain on disposal of discontinued operations of $56.6
million during the year ended December 25, 2002. Additionally, during the year ended December 25, 2002, we
recorded income from discontinued operations of $4.0 million as a result of the reversal of liabilities related to
entities previously reported as discontinued operations.

Net loss was $31.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2003 compared with net income of $68.1
million for the vear ended December 25, 2002 due to the factors noted above.
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2002 vs. 2001
Company Restaurant Operations

During 2002, we realized a 1.0% decline in same-store sales, comprised of a 2.8% decrease in guest counts
and a 1.8% increase in guest check average. Company restaurant sales declined $90.6 million (9.5%) primarily
due to a net 55-unit decrease in company-owned restaurants as a result of store closures and the sale of
restaurants to franchisees.

During 2002, we focused our attention on basic operational functions and improving hospitality in the
restaurants. Our financial resuits improved during 2002 due to more efficient cost management in the restaurants,
the closure of underperforming restaurants and reduced general and administrative expenses. As a result, total
costs of company restaurant sales decreased $80.6 million (9.8%). As a percentage of company restaurant sales,
total costs of company restaurant sales decreased to §6.0% from 86.3%. Specifically, product costs decreased to
23.9% from 25.0% resulting from favorable commodity costs and improved food waste controls. Payroll and
benefits increased to 42.1% from 40.3% due to increased restaurant staffing levels, wage rate increases and
higher health benefit costs. Occupancy costs decreased to 5.7% from 5.9% primarily as a result of the closure of
underperforming units.

Other operating expenses were comprised of the following amounts and percentages of company restaurant
sales:

Fiscal Year Ended
December 25, December 26,
2002 2001
(Dollars in Thousands)
Utilities . ... e $ 36443 42% $ 44,795 4.7%
Repairs and maintenance . ...................... 19,471 2.3% 28,236 3.0%
Marketing ............. i 35273 4.1% 32,791 3.5%
Other ...............cun. e 31,304 3.7% 36,459 3.8%
Other operating expenses ._»} ................. $122,491 14.3% $142,281 15.0%

Franchise Operations

Franchise and license revenue and costs of franchise and license revenue were comprised of the following
amounts and percentages of franchise and license revenue:

Fiscal Year Ended
December 25, December 26,
2002 2001
(Dollars in Thousands)
Royalties and initial fees ....................... $56,039 62.3% $56,154 62.0%
OccupanCy IEVENUE ... ... oo irnnneennn.. 33976 37.7% 34,394 38.0%
Franchise and licenserevenue . .............. $90,015 100.0% $90,548 100.0%
Occupancy COSIS ..o oot i $22,613 25.1% $20,297 224%
Otherdirect costS . .. ..o iv it i 5,963 6.6% 11965 13.2%
Costs of franchise and license revenue . ....... $28,576  31.7% $32,262 35.6%

The revenue decrease of $0.5 million resulted primarily from a decrease in occupancy revenues due to the
decreased number of franchise restaurants. Additionally, a decrease in initial franchise fees due to reduced
refranchising activity in 2002 was partially offset by an increase in royalties from existing franchise restaurants.
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Costs of franchise and license revenue decreased $3.7 million (11.4%) driven by a $6.8 million decrease in
net marketing expense partially offset by a $2.3 million increase in rent expense. Additionally, prior year costs
benefited from a net $0.9 million reduction in bad debt expense related to the collection of certain past due
accounts. As a percentage of franchise and license revenues, these costs decreased to 31.7% for the year ended
December 25, 2002 from 35.6% for the year ended December 26, 2001.

Other Operating Costs and Expenses

Other operating costs and expenses such as general and administrative expenses and depreciation and
amortization expense relate to both company and franchise operations.

General and administrative expenses decreased $16.9 million (25.3%) for the year ended December 25,
2002 compared with the year ended December 26, 2001. The year ended December 26, 2001 included
approximately $1.6 million of senior management recruiting expenses. The remaining decrease resulted from
organizational changes implemented during 2001 and 2002 and the reversal of annual bonus accruals during the
fourth quarter of 2002 because bonus targets had not been met.

Depreciation and amortization, including amortization of goodwill and other intangible assets with
indefinite lives, decreased $41.1 million primarily as a result of the implementation of. SFAS 142 relating to the
discontinuance of amortization of goodwill (including reorganization value). See Notes 2 and 3 to our
consolidated financial statements.

Lower refranchising activity during the year ended December 25, 2002 resulted in a $4.2 million decrease in
gains on disposition of assets and other, net. Approximately $8.2 million of gains recorded during 2002 were
the result of sales of surplus properties compared to $4.3 million during 2001.

Impairment charge of $4.6 million in 2002 and $13.6 million in 2001 related to the identification of
certain underperforming restaurants.

Restructuring charges and exit costs of $3.5 million recorded in 2002 primarily represent additional
provisions for future rent obligations on Denny’s former corporate headquarters facility in California due to the
bankruptcy of our most significant subtenant.

Operating income was $49.6 million for the year ended December 25, 2002 compared with a loss of $19.7
million for the year ended December 26, 2001.

Interest expense, net for 2002 was comprised of $79.8 million of interest expense offset by $3.4 million of
interest income compared with $79.7 million of interest expense offset by $6.5 million of interest income for
2001. Interest expense was relatively flat as the effects of lower borrowings under our credit facility were offset
by higher deferred financing cost amortization related to our credit facility and higher interest expense related to
discounted liabilities for exit costs. The decrease in interest income resulted from the repayment of the FRD
credit facility.

Other nonoperating income, net for the year ended December 25, 2002 primarily represents a gain of
$32.9 million on the exchange of debt. For further information regarding our debt exchange, see Note 7 to the
consolidated financial statements. As a result of the settlement of the remaining issues related to our former
information systems outsourcing contract with IBM, approximately $7.8 million of capital lease obligations were
forgiven and a gain was recognized as a component of other nonoperating income in 2001.

For the year ended December 25, 2002, we recorded a benefit from income taxes of $1.4 million. The
benefit included $2.7 million related to the enactment of H.R. 3090, the Job Creation and Worker Assistant Act
of 2002. See Note 9 to our consolidated financial statements. Excluding this benefit, we recorded a provision for
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income taxes of $1.3 million for the year ended December 25, 2002 compared with a provision for income taxes
of $1.6 million for the year ended December 26, 2001. These provisions for income taxes primarily represent
gross receipts based state and foreign income taxes which do not directly fluctuate in relation to changes in
income (loss) before income taxes.

As a result of the divestiture of FRD, we recorded a gain on sale of discontinued operations of $56.6
million during the year ended December 25, 2002. See Note 14 to our consolidated financial statements.
Additionally, during the year ended December 25, 2002, we recorded income from operations of discontinued
operations of $4.0 million as a result of the reversal of liabilities related to entities previously reported as
discontinued operations.

Net income was $68.1 million for the year ended December 25, 2002 compared with a net loss of $88.5
million for the year ended December 26, 2001 due to the factors noted above.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our primary sources of liquidity and capital resources are cash generated from operations, borrowings under
our credit facility and, in recent years, cash proceeds from the sale of surplus properties, sale-leaseback
transactions and the sale of restaurants to franchisees. The following table sets forth a calculation of our cash
provided by operations, for the periods indicated:

Fiscal Year Ended

December 31, December 25,
2003 2002
(In thousands)

Netincome (I0SS) ... ...oovi it it $(31,483) $ 68,136
(Gain) loss on early extinguishment of debt .. ............. 1,192 (32,900)
Impairment charges .......... ... ..o i, 3,986 4,556
Restructuring charges and exit costs ..................... 613 3,521
Gains on disposition of assets and other,net ............... (5,844) 9,127)
Gain on sale of discontinued operations .................. — (56,562)
Income from discontinued operations .................... — (4,040)
Other noncashcharges . ......... ... ... ... it 61,094 78,456
Change in certain working capital items .................. 2,358 (29,364)
Change in other assets and other liabilities, net . ............ (5,308) (13,855)
Cash provided by operations .................ooeunnnun. $ 26,608 $ 82821

The improvement in cash flows from operations compared with the prior year is due primarily to the higher
use of cash in the prior year to settle certain working capital items and long term liabilities such as liabilities for
interest, severance, litigation and exit costs.

Our principal capital requirements have been largely associated with remodeling and maintaining our
existing restaurants and facilities. Net cash flows used for investing activities were $13.9 million for 2003. Our
capital expenditures were $33.4 million. Of that amount, $1.4 million was financed through capital leases.
Capital expenditures during 2004 are expected to total $35 million to $45 million; however, we are not
committed to spending this amount and could spend less if circumstances require. Capital expenditures were
offset by net proceeds from dispositions of property of $18.1 million, including $4.7 million from sale-leaseback
transactions. There were no sales of restaurants to franchisees during 2003.

Cash flows used in financing activities were $11.0 million for 2003 which primarily represents activity
under our credit facility. We entered into our credit facility in December 2002. The credit facility initially

provided Denny’s with a working capital and letter of credit facility of up to $125 million. We obtained an
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amendment to the credit facility to provide less restrictive financial covenants effective for the quarter ended
June 25, 2003 and the remaining term of the credit facility. On September 26, 2003, we amended and restated our
$125 million credit facility to include $40 million of term loans, thereby increasing the aggregate commitments
to $165 million. The new term loans will not amortize prior to maturity. We used the $40 million term loan
proceeds to pay down outstanding revolving loans, thus increasing availability under the revolving portion of the
credit facility and enhancing our current liquidity position. Effective December 31, 2003, commitments under the
credit facility were reduced to $161 million as scheduled in the credit agreement. The amended and restated
facility, including the new term loans, will mature on December 20, 2004.

At December 31, 2003, we had outstanding revolving loans of $11.1 million, letters of credit of $35.1
million and term loans of $40.0 million under our credit facility, leaving net availability of $74.8 million. At
March 15, 2004, we had outstanding revolving loans of $10.0 million, letters of credit of $35.1 million and term
loans of $40.0 million under our credit facility, leaving net availability of $75.9 million. Revolving loans under
the credit facility accrue interest at a variable rate (approximately 6.7% at December 31, 2003 and 6.1% at March
15, 2004) based on the prime rate or an adjusted Eurodollar rate. Term loans bear interest at a fixed rate of 11.0%
per annum.

The credit facility is generally secured by liens on the stock of our subsidiaries, accounts receivable,
intellectual property, cash and cash accounts. In addition, the facility is secured by first-priority mortgages on
240 owned restaurant properties and our corporate headquarters located in Spartanburg, South Carolina, with an
aggregate fair value of approximately $248 million, based on appraisals obtained in October 2002. Denny’s
Corporation and its subsidiaries are guarantors under the credit facility. The credit facility contains certain
financial covenants (i.e., minimum EBITDA (as defined under the credit facility) requirements, total debt to
EBITDA ratio requirements and total senior secured debt to EBITDA requirements), negative covenants,
conditions precedent, material adverse change provisions, events of default and other terms, conditions and
provisions customarily found in credit agreements for leveraged financings. We were in compliance with the
terms of the credit facility, as amended, as of December 31, 2003, and we expect to remain in compliance with
the terms of our credit facility through its expiration date.

We continue to be dependent upon our credit facility in order to provide sustained liquidity for continuing
operations. We believe that our forecasted cash flow from operations for 2004, combined with our capacity for
additional borrowings under our credit facility, will enable us to meet our anticipated cash requirements and fund
capital expenditures through December 20, 2004, the expiration date of the credit facility, and through the end of
2004 under the assumption that we successfully negotiate a replacement credit facility.

Our ability to maintain continuity of operations will depend on a number of factors, including our ability to
negotiate a replacement credit facility. We believe we will be able to successfully obtain a replacement senior
secured credit facility, based on the following key considerations:

1) Although we are a highly leveraged company, our senior secured leverage (total debt less our 11%4%
Notes and 12%4% Notes) is relatively low which we believe provides sufficient capacity for an
adequate replacement facility.

2) We benefit from a significant owned real estate portfolio that would be available as collateral, if
needed, for a replacement facility These assets have an aggregate fair value of approximately $248
million, which is well in excess of our credit facility needs.

3)  Other than our credit facility, we have no other significant debt maturities coming due until our senior
notes mature in 2007 and 2008. See Note 7 to our consolidated financial statements.

4) Despite our non-investment grade credit profile, we believe there is a relatively strong market for a
secured loan transaction for Denny’s, especially among institutional lenders, based on preliminary
discussions with potential interested sources.

We believe that we will be able to obtain a refinancing of our credit facility before our current facility
expires. If we are unable to obtain such additional financing, when needed, on terms favorable to the Company,
our financial condition and results of operations will be materially affected.
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Our future contractual obligations and commitments at December 31, 2003 consist of the following:

Payments Due by Period
Less than 5 Years
Total 1 Year 1-2Years 3-4 Years and Thereafter
(In thousands)
Long-termdebt ..................... $ 552,288 $ 51,714 § 477 $499,723 § 374
Capital lease obligations .............. 60,598 7,732 14,142 11,915 26,809
Operating lease obligations ............ 345,424 47,791 86,500 69,060 142,073
Interest obligations (@) . ............... 258,005 62,387 116,148 79,402 68
Pension and other defined contribution

plan obligations (b) ................ 5,253 5,253 — — —

Purchase obligations (¢} .............. 103,770 84,293 19,477 — —
Total ........ ... .. i $1,325,338 $259,170 $236,744 $660,100 $169,324

(a) Interest obligations represent payments related to our 11 ¥4% Notes, 12%4% Notes, other fixed rate debt and
our term loan through its expiration date on December 20, 2004. These amounts do not include an estimate
of interest on our revolving loans under our credit facility due to the fact that balances outstanding will vary.
No assumptions have been made for possible refinancing of these long-term debt instruments. See Note 7 to
our consolidated financial statements for balances and terms of our credit facility at December 31, 2003.

(b) Pension and other defined contribution plan obligations are estimates based on facts and circumstances at
December 31, 2003. Amounts cannot be estimated for more than one year at the date of this report.

(c) Purchase obligations include amounts payable under purchase contracts for food and non-food products. In
most cases, these agreements do not obligate us to purchase any specific volumes. In most cases, these
agreements have provisions that would allow us to cancel such agreements with appropriate notice.
Amounts included in the table above represent our estimate of minimum purchases required as a result of
these cancellation provisions.

At December 31, 2003, our working capital deficit was $160.5 million compared with $119.1 million at
December 25, 2002. The working capital deficit increase of $41.4 million resulted from reclassification of
balances outstanding of $51.1 million under our credit facility and term loans to current liabilities due to their
December 20, 2004 due date. We are able to operate with a substantial working capital deficit because
(1) restaurant operations and most food service operations are conducted primarily on a cash (and cash
equivalent) basis with a low level of accounts receivable, (2) rapid turnover allows a limited investment in
inventories, and (3) accounts payable for food, beverages and supplies usually become due after the receipt of
cash from the related sales.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Our discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations are based upon our
consolidated financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America. The preparation of these financial statements requires us to make
estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses, and related
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. On an ongoing basis, we evaluate our estimates, including those
related to self-insurance liabilities, impairment of long-lived assets, and restructuring and exit costs. We base our
estimates on historical experience and on various other assumptions that we believe to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making judgments about the carrying values of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates under
different assumptions or conditions; however, we believe that our estimates, including those for the above-
described items, are reasonable.
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We believe the following critical accounting policies affect our more significant judgments and estimates
used in the preparation of our consolidated financial statements:

Self-insurance liabilities. We record liabilities for insurance claims during periods in which we have been
insured under large deductible programs or have been self-insured for our medical and dental claims and
workers’ compensation, general/product and automobile insurance liabilities. Maximum self-insured retention,
including defense costs per occurrence, ranges from $0.5 to $1.0 million per individual claim for workers’
compensation and for general/product and automobile liability. The liabilities for prior and current estimated
incurred losses are discounted to their present value based on expected loss payment patterns determined by
independent actuaries. These estimates include assumptions regarding claims frequency and severity as well as
changes in our business environment, medical costs and the regulatory environment that could impact our overall
self-insurance costs.

During 2003, we began to experience worsening trends related to workers’ compensation costs, especially in
California. Approximately 40% of our workers’ compensation liabilities relate to California. As a result of these
trends, we recorded $2.0 million of additional workers’ compensation expense in the second half of the year in
addition to our periodic estimated cost per labor hour. We believe that these trends may continue into 2004.

Total discounted insurance liabilities at December 31, 2003 and December 25, 2002 were $37.2 million and
$36.3 million, respectively, reflecting a 5% discount rate for 2003 and 2002. The related undiscounted amounts
at such dates were $41.8 million and $40.9 million, respectively.

Impairment of long-lived assets. We evaluate our long-lived assets for impairment at the restaurant level on
a quarterly basis or whenever changes or events indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable. We
assess impairment of restaurant-level assets based on the operating cash flows of the restaurant and our plans for
restaurant closings. Generally, all units with negative cash flows from operations for the most recent twelve
months at each quarter end are included in our assessment. In performing our assessment, we must make
assumptions regarding estimated future cash flows, including estimated proceeds from similar asset sales, and
other factors to determine both the recoverability and the estimated fair value of the respective assets. If the long-
lived assets of a restaurant are not recoverable based upon estimated future, undiscounted cash flows, we write
the assets down to their fair value. If these estimates or their related assumptions change in the future, we may be
required to record additional impairment charges.

During 2003, 2002 and 2001, we recorded impairment charges of $4.0 million, $4.6 million and $13.6
million, respectively, for underperforming restaurants, including restaurants closed. At December 31, 2003, we
had a total of 32 restaurants with an aggregate net book value of approximately $3.2 million, after taking into
consideration impairment charges recorded, which had negative cash flows from operations for the most recent
twelve months.

Restructuring and exit costs. As a result of changes in our organizational structure, we have recorded
charges for restructuring and exit costs. These costs consist primarily of severance and outplacement costs for
terminated employees and the costs of future obligations related to closed units or units identified for closure.

In assessing the discounted liabilities for future costs of obligations related to closed units prior to December
26, 2002, the date we adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 146, “Accounting for Costs
Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities,” or SFAS 146, we make assumptions regarding the timing of units’
closures, amounts of future subleases, amounts of future property taxes and costs of closing the units.

“As aresult of the adoption of SFAS 146, discounted liabilities for future lease costs and the fair value of
related subleases of units closed after December 25, 2002 are recorded when the unit is closed. All other costs
related to the units’ closures, including property taxes and maintenance related costs, are expensed as incurred.

Under either methodology, our most significant estimate included in our accrued exit costs liabilities relates
to the timing and amount of estimated subleases. At December 31, 2003, our total discounted liability for closed
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units was approximately $13.0 million, net of discounted actual subleases of $8.2 million and discounted
estimated subleases of $6.0 million. If any of the estimates noted above or their related assumptions change in the
future, we may be required to record additional exit costs or reduce exit costs previously recorded. See Note 4 to
our consolidated financial statements.

Implementation of New Accounting Standards

In July 2001, the FASB issued SFAS 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,” which became effective
for us on December 27, 2001, the first day of our 2002 fiscal year. SFAS 142 requires us, among other things, to
discontinue goodwill amortization, including the amortization of reorganization value. In addition, the standard
provides for reclassifying certain intangibles as goodwill, reassessing the useful lives of intangibles, reclassifying
certain intangibles out of previously reported goodwill and identifying reporting units for purposes of assessing
potential future impairments of goodwill. See Note 3 to our consolidated financial statements for a discussion of
the effects of adopting this new accounting standard.

In October 2001, the FASB issued SFAS 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived
Assets,” which addresses financial accounting and reporting for the impairment or disposal of long-lived assets.
SFAS 144 supersedes SFAS 121, “Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived
Assets to be Disposed Of,” and the accounting and reporting provisions of Accounting Principles Board Opinion
No. 30, “Reporting the Results of Operations — Reporting the Effects of Disposal of a Segment of a Business,
and Extraordinary, Unusual and Infrequently Occurring Events and Transactions,” related to the disposal of a
segment of a business. SFAS 144 became effective for us on December 27, 2001, the first day of our 2002 fiscal
year. Our adoption of SFAS 144 had no impact on our financial position or results of operations.

In April 2002, the FASB issued SFAS 145, “Rescission of FASB Statements No. 4, 44, and 64, Amendment
of FASB Statements No. 13, and Technical Corrections.” Among other things, SFAS 145 eliminates FASB
Statement No. 4, or SFAS 4, “Reporting Gains and Losses from Extinguishment of Debt”. Under SFAS 4, all
gains and losses from extinguishment of debt were required to be aggregated and, if material, classified as an
extraordinary item, net of any related income tax effect. As a result of the elimination of SFAS 4, gains and
losses from extinguishment of debt should be classified as extraordinary items only if they meet the criteria in
APB Opinion No. 30, “Reporting the Results of Operations — Reporting the Effects of Disposal of a Segment of
a Business, and Extraordinary, Unusual and Infrequently Occurring Events and Transactions.” The provisions of
SFAS 145 related to the rescission of SFAS 4 are effective for fiscal years beginning after May 15, 2002. We
early adopted SFAS 145 in the second quarter of 2002. As a result, we reclassified a $7.8 million extraordinary
item recorded in 2001 to our nonoperating income during 2002. In addition, our gains and losses from
extinguishments of debt in 2002 and 2003 are also reported in nonoperating expense (income).

In June 2002, the FASB issued SFAS 146, “Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal
Activities.” This statement replaces Emerging Issues Task Force (EITF) Issue No. 94-3, “Liability Recognition .
for Certain Employee Termination Benefits and Other Costs to Exit an Activity (including certain costs incurred
in a restructuring)”. The principal difference between SFAS 146 and EITF 94-3 relates to its requirements for
recognition of a liability for a cost associated with an exit or disposal activity. This statement requires that a
liability for a cost associated with an exit or disposal activity be recognized when the liability is incurred. Under
EITF 94-3, a liability for an exit cost as defined in EITF 94-3 was recognized at the date of an entity’s
commitment to an exit plan. A fundamental conclusion reached by the Board in this Statement is that an entity’s
commitment to a plan, by itself, does not create a present obligation to others that meets the definition of a
liability. SFAS 146 eliminates the definition and requirements for recognition of exit costs in EITF 94-3. This
statement also establishes that fair value is the objective for initial measurement of the liability. The adoption of
this statement did not have a material impact on our financial position and results of operations; however, the
timing of the recognition of future costs under SFAS 146 is substantially different than the timing under EITF
94-3. See Note 4 to our consolidated financial statements. SFAS 146 became effective for exit and disposal
activities initiated after December 31, 2002.
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FASB Interpretation No. 45, or FIN 45 “Guarantor’s Accounting and Disclosure Requirements for
Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others,” was issued in November 2002. FIN 45
elaborates on the disclosures to be made by a guarantor in its interim and annual financial statements about its
obligations under certain guarantees that it has issued. It also clarifies that a guarantor is required to recognize, at
the inception of a guarantee, a liability for the fair value of the obligation undertaken in issuing the guarantee.
The initial recognition and initial measurement provisions of FIN 45 are applicable on a prospective basis to
guarantees issued or modified after December 31, 2002. The disclosure requirements became effective for
financial statements of interim or annual periods ending after December 15, 2002. The adoption of FIN 45 had no
material impact on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

In December 2002, the FASB issued SFAS 148, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation — Transition
and Disclosure — an amendment of FASB Statement No. 123.” SFAS 148 amends SFAS 123, “Accounting for
Stock Based Compensation” and provides for alternative methods for accounting for a change by registrants to
the fair value method of accounting for stock-based compensation. The transition guidance and annual disclosure
provision of the statement are effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2002. In accordance with
the statement, we will continue to use the intrinsic value method and disclose the required pro-forma information
in the notes to the consolidated financial statements. See Note 2 to our consolidated financial statements.

In January 2003, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation (FIN) No. 46, “Consolidation of Variable Interest
Entities.” In December 2003, the FASB issued FIN No. 46 (Revised) (FIN 46-R) to address certain FIN 46
implementation issues. This interpretation clarifies the application of Accounting Research Bulletin (ARB)

No. 51, “Consolidated Financial Statements,” for companies that have interests in entities that are Variable
Interest Entities (VIE) as defined under FIN 46. According to this interpretation, if a company has an interest in a
VIE and is at risk for a majority of the VIE’s expected losses or receives a majority of the VIE’s expected gains,
it shall consolidate the VIE. FIN 46-R also requires additional disclosures by primary beneficiaries and other
significant variable interest holders. For entities acquired or created before February 1, 2003, this interpretation is
effective no later than the end of the first interim or reporting period ending after March 15, 2004, except for
those VIE’s that are considered to be special purpose entities, for which the effective date is no later than the end
of the first interim or annual reporting period ending after December 15, 2003. For all entities that were acquired
subsequent to January 31, 2003, this interpretation is effective as of the first interim or annual period ending after
December 31, 2003. The adoption of the provisions of this interpretation had no effect on our consolidated
financial statements as of and for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2003. We will fully adopt FIN 46-R during
the first quarter of 2004. We currently do not expect the adoption of FIN 46-R to have a material effect on our
consolidated financial statements. However, we are still assessing the impact of FIN 46-R on certain transactions
that occurred before February 1, 2003 in which we provided financial support to franchisees in the form of notes
payable or direct financing leases for approximately 31 of our 1,077 franchised units. Therefore, the full impact
of adopting FIN 46-R cannot be fully established at the present time.

In May 2003, the FASB issued SFAS No. 150, “Accounting for Certain Financial Instruments with
Characteristics of Both Liabilities and Equity.” SFAS 150 clarifies the accounting for certain financial
instruments with characteristics of both liabilities and equity and requires that those instruments be classified as
liabilities in statements of financial position. Previously, many of those financial instruments were classified as
equity. SFAS 150 is effective for financial instruments entered into or modified after May 31, 2003, and
otherwise is effective at the beginning of the first interim period beginning after June 15, 2003. The adoption of
the provisions of SFAS 150 had no effect on our consolidated financial statements.

In December 2003, the FASB issued SFAS No. 132 (Revised) (SFAS 132-R), Employer’s Disclosure about
Pensions and Other Postretirement Benefits. SFAS 132-R retains disclosure requirements of the original SFAS
132 and requires additional disclosures relating to assets, obligations, cash flows, and net periodic benefit cost.
SFAS 132-R is effective for fiscal years ending after December 15, 2003, except that certain disclosures are
effective for fiscal years ending after June 15, 2004. Interim period disclosures are effective for interim periods
beginning after December 15, 2003. The adoption of the disclosure provisions of SFAS 132-R are reflected in
our accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk
Interest Rate Risk

We have exposure to interest rate risk related to certain instruments entered into for other than trading
purposes. Specifically, borrowings under the credit facility bear interest at a variable rate based on the prime rate
(prime rate plus 4%) or an adjusted Eurodollar rate (LIBOR plus 5%). A 100 basis point change in the credit
facility interest rate (approximately 6.7% at December 31, 2003) would have caused the interest expense for
2003 to change by approximately $0.1 million. This computation is determined by considering the impact of
hypothetical interest rates on the revolving portion of our credit facility at December 31, 2003. However, the
nature and amount of our borrowings under the credit facility may vary as a result of future business
requirements, market conditions and other factors.

Our other outstanding long-term debt bears fixed rates of interest. The estimated fair value of our fixed rate
long-term debt (excluding capital leases) was approximately $439.8 million at December 31, 2003. This
computation is based on market quotations for the same or similar debt issues or the estimated borrowing rates
available to us. The difference between the estimated fair value of long-term debt compared to its historical cost
reported in our consolidated balance sheets at December 31, 2003 relates primarily to market quotations for our
11 ¥4% Notes. See Note 7 to our consolidated financial statements.

Commodity Price Risk

We purchase certain food products such as beef, poultry, pork, eggs and coffee, and utilities such as gas and
electricity, which are affected by commodity pricing and are, therefore, subject to price volatility caused by
weather, production problems, delivery difficulties and other factors that are outside our control and which are
generally unpredictable. Changes in commodity prices affect us and our competitors generally and often
simultaneously. In general, we purchase food products and utilities based upon market prices established with
vendors. Although many of the items purchased are subject to changes in commodity prices, certain purchasing
arrangements are structured to contain features that minimize price volatility by establishing price ceilings and/or
floors. We use these types of purchase arrangements to control costs as an alternative to using financial
instruments to hedge commodity prices. In many cases, we believe we will be able to address commodity cost
increases which are significant and appear to be long-term in nature by adjusting our menu pricing or changing
our product delivery strategy. However, competitive circumstances could limit such actions and, in those
circumstances, increases in commodity prices could lower our margins. Because of the often short-term nature of
commodity pricing aberrations and our ability to change menu pricing or product delivery strategies in response
to commodity price increases, we believe that the impact of commodity price risk is not significant.

We have established a policy to identify, control and manage market risks which may arise from changes in
interest rates, commodity prices and other relevant rates and prices. We do not use derivative instruments for
trading purposes, and no interest rate or other financial derivatives were in place at December 31, 2003.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

See Index to Financial Statements which appears on page F-1 herein.

Form 11-K Information

Pursuant to Rule 15d-21 promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, we will file
as an amendment to this Annual Report on Form 10-K the information, financial statements and exhibits required
by Form 11-K with respect to the Denny’s 401(k) Plans.
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

As previously reported in accordance with the requirements of Item 304 of Regulation S-K, on April 22,
2003, we notified Deloitte & Touche LLP that it would not be retained to perform the audit of our financial
statements for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2003. The decision not to retain Deloitte & Touche LLP was
made by the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors and, upon recommendation by that committee, was
approved by the full Board of Directors. Also as previously reported in accordance with the requirements of Item
304 of Regulation S-K, on April 22, 2003, our Audit Committee determined to engage KPMG LLP as
independent accountants to audit our financial statements for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2003 and, upon
recommendation by the Audit Committee, the decision was approved by the full Board of Directors.

Ttem 9A. Controls and Procedures

As required by Rule 13a-15(b) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, our management
conducted an evaluation (under the supervision and with the participation of our President and Chief Executive
Officer, Nelson J. Marchioli, and our Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer, Andrew F. Green) as of
the end of the period covered by this report, of the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures as
defined in Rule 13a-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. Based on that evaluation,
Messrs. Marchioli and Green each concluded that Denny’s disclosure controls and procedures are effective to
ensure that information required to be disclosed in the reports that Denny’s files or submits under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods
specified in the Securities and Exchange Commission’s rules and forms.

There have been no changes in our internal control over financial reporting identified in connection with the
evaluation required by Rule 13a-15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, that occurred during
our last fiscal quarter that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal
control over financial reporting.
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PART III

Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant

Information required by this item with respect to our directors, compliance by our directors, executive
officers and certain beneficial owners of our common stock with Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, our Audit Committee Financial Expert and our code of ethics is furnished by incorporation by reference to
all information under the captions entitled “Election of Directors”, “Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership
Reporting Compliance” and “Corporate Governance-Code of Ethics” in the proxy statement (to be filed later) in
connection with Denny’s Corporation 2004 Annual Meeting of Shareholders (or will be filed by amendment to
this report). The information required by this item related to our executive officers appears in Item 1 of Part [ of
this report under the caption “Executive Officers of the Registrant.”

Item 11. Executive Compensation

The information required by this item will be furnished by incorporation by reference to all information
under the captions entitled “Executive Compensation” and “Election of Directors — Compensation of Directors”
in the proxy statement (or will be filed by amendment to this report).

Item 12, Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters

The information required by this item will be furnished by incorporation by reference to all information
under the caption “General — Equity Security Ownership” in the proxy statement (or will be filed by amendment
to this report).

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions
Certain Transactions

The information required by this item is furnished by incorporation by reference to all information under the
caption “Certain Transactions™ in the proxy statement (or will be filed by amendment to this report).

Information Regarding Certain Indebtedness

The following information regarding certain of our debt instruments does not purport to be complete and is
qualified in its entirety by reference to the documents governing such debt, including the definitions of certain
terms therein, which have been filed as exhibits to filings of Denny’s with the Commission. Whenever particular
provisions of such documents are referred to herein, such provisions are incorporated herein by reference, and the
statements are qualified in their entirety by such reference. See Note 7 to our consolidated financial statements
for additional information regarding our indebtedness and the terms thereof (including indebtedness under the
credit facility and certain mortgage financings).

11Y4% Senior Notes Due 2008

At December 31, 2003, Denny’s Corporation had outstanding $379.0 million aggregate principal amount of
11 ¥4% Notes. The 11 %4% Notes are senior unsecured obligations of Denny’s Corporation and rank pari passu in
right of payment to all senior indebtedness of Denny’s Corporation, including the obligations of Denny’s
Corporation under the credit facility. However, the 11 /4% Notes are effectively subordinated to Denny’s secured
indebtedness, including indebtedness under the credit facility to the extent of the lenders’ security interests in
Denny’s assets, and structurally subordinated to indebtedness of the subsidiaries of Denny’s Corporation under
both the credit facility and the 12%4% Notes. Interest on the 11 4% Notes is payable semi-annually on July 15
and January 15 of each year. They will mature on January 15, 2008.

The 11 ¥4% Notes are redeemable, in whole or in part, at the option of Denny’s at any time on or after
January 14, 2004, at a redemption price equal to 103.750% of the principal amount thereof up to and including
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January 14, 2005, at 101.875% of the principal amount thereof up to and including January 14, 2006, and
thereafter at 100% of the principal amount thereof, together in each case with accrued interest.

123/4% Senior Notes Due 2007

On April 15, 2002, we issued $70.4 million aggregate principal amount of Denny’s Corporation’s 12%%
Notes in exchange for $88.1 million aggregate principal amount of 11 ¥4% Notes. During the fourth quarter of
2002, we closed a series of privately negotiated transactions whereby we issued an additional $50.0 million
aggregate principal amount of 12%% Notes in exchange for $62.5 million aggregate principal amount of 11 ¥a%
Notes.

At December 31, 2003, Denny’s Corporation and Denny’s Holdings, Inc. have outstanding $120.4 million
aggregate principal amount of Denny’s Corporation’s and Denny’s Holdings, Inc.’s 12%4% Notes. Denny’s
Corporation and its wholly owned subsidiary, Denny’s Holdings, Inc. (the direct parent of Denny’s restaurant
operating subsidiaries), are jointly obligated with respect to the 1232% Notes; therefore, the 123%4% Notes are
structurally senior to the 11 ¥4% Notes. The 12%4% Notes are senior unsecured obligations of Denny’s
Corporation and Denny’s Holdings, Inc. and rank pari passu in right of payment to all senior indebtedness of
Denny’s Corporation and Denny’s Holdings, Inc., including the obligations of Denny’s Corporation and Denny’s
Holdings, Inc. under the credit facility. However, the 123%4% Notes are effectively subordinated to Denny’s
secured indebtedness, including indebtedness under the credit facility to the extent of the lenders’ security
interests in Denny’s assets, and structurally subordinated to indebtedness of the subsidiaries of Denny’s
Holdings, Inc. under the credit facility. Interest on the 12%4% Notes is payable semi-annually on March 31 and
September 30 of each year. They will mature on September 30, 2007.

The 12%4% Notes will be redeemable, in whole or in part, at the option of Denny’s at any time on or after
September 30, 2004, at 106.375% of their principal amount thereof up to and including September 30, 2006, and
thereafter at 100% of the principal amount thereof, together in each case with accrued interest.

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services

The information required by this item will be furnished by incorporation by reference to all information
under the caption entitled “Selection of Independent Public Auditors ~ 2003 Audit Information” in the proxy
statement (or will be filed by amendment to this report).
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PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules and Reports on Form 8-K

(a)(1) Financial Statements: See the Index to Financial Statements which appears on page F-1 hereof.

(2) Financial Statement Schedules: No schedules are filed herewith because of the absence of conditions
under which they are required or because the information called for is in our consolidated financial statements or
notes thereto appearing elsewhere herein.

(3) Exhibits: Certain of the exhibits to this Report, indicated by an asterisk, are hereby incorporated by
reference to other documents on file with the Commission with which they are electronically filed, to be a part
hereof as of their respective dates.

Exhibit
No.

*¥2.1

3.1
¥3.2

*33

*4.1

*4.2

*4.3

*4.4

*4.5

*10.1

Description

Joint Plan of Reorganization of FCI and Flagstar, as amended November 7, 1997 and as confirmed by
order of the United States Bankruptcy Court for the District of South Carolina entered November 12,
1997 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to FCI’s Form 8-K, dated November 12, 1997).

Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Denny’s dated March 3, 2003.

Certificate of Designation, Preferences, and Rights of Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock of
Advantica dated December 16, 1998 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2A to Amendment No. 2
to the Registration Statement (No. 333-72658) of Advantica (the “Advantica 2001 Form S-4
Amendment No. 2™)).

By-Laws of Advantica, as amended through January 24, 2001 (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 3.1 to Advantica’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 28, 2001 (the
“2001 First Quarter Form 10-Q™)).

Indenture dated as of May 23, 1996 between FRD and the Bank of New York, as Trustee (the “FRD
Indenture”) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Registration Statements on Forms S-1 and
S-4 dated as of September 6, 1996 (No. 333-07601) of ERD (the “FRD Form S-1/5-4")).

Indenture relating to the 11 Y4% Senior Notes (including the form of security) dated as of January 7,
1998, between Advantica and First Trust National Association, as Trustee (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 4.1 to Advantica’s Form §-K filed January 15, 1998 (the “1998 Form 8-K”)).

Indenture relating to the 123%4% Senior Notes (including form of security) dated April 13, 2002
among Denny’s and Denny’s Holdings Inc. and U.S. Bank National Association, as Trustee
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of Denny’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter
ended March 27, 2002).

Warrant Agreement (including the form of Warrant) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the
Form 8-A of Advantica filed January 7, 1998 relating to Advantica’s common stock warrants).

Rights Agreement, dated as of December 15, 1998, between Advantica and Continental Stock
Transfer and Trust Company, as Rights Agent (including form of right certificate) (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 1 to Advantica’s Form 8-A, filed December 15, 1998, relating to preferred stock
purchase rights).

Credit Agreement, dated January 7, 1998, among Denny’s, Inc., El Pollo Loco, Inc., Flagstar
Enterprises, Inc., Flagstar Systems, Inc. and Quincy’s Restaurants, Inc., as borrowers, Advantica, as a
guarantor, the lenders named therein, and The Chase Manhattan Bank, as administrative agent (the
“0ld Credit Agreement”) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the 1998 Form 8-K).
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Exhibit
No.

*10.2

*10.3

*10.4

*10.5

*10.6

*10.7

*10.8

+*10.9

+*10.10

*10.11

+¥10.12

*10.13

*10.14

*10.15

Description

Amendment No. 1 and Waiver, dated as of March 16, 1998, relating to the Old Credit Agreement
(incorporated by Reference to Exhibit 10.53 to the Registration Statement on Form S-1
(No. 333-45811) of Advantica).

Amendment No. 2 and Waiver, dated as of May 21, 1998, relating to the Old Credit Agreement
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Advantica’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended July 1, 1998).

Amendment No. 3 and Waiver, dated as of July 16, 1998, to the Old Credit Agreement
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Advantica’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended September 30, 1998).

Amendment No. 4, dated as of November 12, 1998, to the Old Credit Agreement (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.35 to Advantica’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 30, 1998).

Advantica Restaurant Group Director Stock Option Plan, as amended through January 24, 2001
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the 2001 First Quarter Form 10-Q).

Amendment No. 5, dated March 12, 1999, to the Old Credit Agreement (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.3 to Advantica’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31,
1999 (the “1999 First Quarter Form 10-Q”)).

Amendment No. 6, dated December 20, 1999, to the Old Credit Agreement (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.37 to Advantica’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 29, 1999).

Merge_r Amendment, dated March 15, 1999, to the Advantica Restaurant Group Stock Option Plan
and the Advantica Restaurant Group Officer Stock Option Plan (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.4 to the 1999 First Quarter Form 10-Q).

Advantica Stock Option Plan as amended through November 28, 2001 (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.19 to Advantica’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 26, 2001).

Credit Agreement, dated May 14, 1999, among Coco’s Restaurants, Inc., Carrows Restaurants, Inc.,
and Jojo’s Restaurants, Inc., as borrowers, FRD Acquisition Co. and FRD Corporation, as
guarantors, the lenders named therein, Credit Lyonnais New York Branch as administrative agent,
and The Chase Manhattan Bank, as documentation agent and syndication agent (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Advantica’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June
30, 1999).

Form of Agreement, dated February 9, 2000, providing certain retention incentives and severance
benefits for company management (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Advantica’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 29, 2000).

Amendment No. 7, dated as of June 20, 2000, to the Old Credit Agreement (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.3 to Advantica’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
June 28, 2000).

Amendment No. 8, dated as of December 26, 2000, to the Old Credit Agreement (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.26 to Advantica’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 27, 2000).

Amendment No. 9, dated as of October 18, 2001, to the Old Credit Agreement (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.29 to Advantica 2001 S-4 Amendment No. 2.)

30



Exhibit
No.

*10.16

*10.17

*10.18

*10.19

*10.20

*10.21

+¥10.22

+%10.23

+%10.24

*10.25

*10.26

Description

Stipulation and Agreement of Settlement, dated February 19, 2002, by and among FRD, the
Creditors Committee, Advantica, Denny’s, Inc. FRI-M Corporation, Coco’s and Carrows, and as
filed with the Bankruptcy Court on February 19, 2002 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to
Advantica’s Form 8-K, dated February 19, 2001).

Waiver and Agreement, dated as of June 17, 2002, (“Amendment No. 10™), to the Old Credit
Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Denny’s Quarterly Report of Form 10-Q
for the quarter ended September 25, 2002 (the “2002 Third Quarter 10-Q™)).

Waiver and Agreement, dated as of June 27, 2002, (“Amendment No. 11”), to the Old Credit
Agreement (incorporated by reference to the 2002 Third Quarter 10-Q).

Credit Agreement, dated as of December 16, 2002, among Denny’s Inc. and Denny’s Realty, Inc.,
as borrowers, Denny’s Corporation, Denny’s Holdings, Inc. and DFO, Inc., as guarantors, the
lenders named therein, JPMorgan Chase Bank, as administrative agent, Foothill Capital
Corporation, as syndication agent and J.P. Morgan Securities Inc., as sole advisor, lead arranger and
bookrunner (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to Denny’s Form 8-K filed December 19,
2002).

Guarantee and Collateral Agreement, dated as of December 16, 2002, among Denny’s Corporation,
Denny’s Holdings, Inc., Denny’s Inc., Denny’s Realty, Inc., each other subsidiary loan party
referenced therein and JPMorgan Chase, as collateral agent (incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 99.2 to Denny’s Form 8-K filed December 19, 2002).

First Amended Plan of Reorganization of FRD Acquisition, Co., confirmed by order of the United
States Bankruptcy Court for the District of Delaware on June 20, 2002 (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 2.2 to Advantica’s Form §-K dated July 10, 2002).

Denny’s, Inc. Omnibus Incentive Compensation Plan for Executives (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 99 to Denny’s Registration Statement on Form S-8 (No. 333-03220) filed February 14,
2003).

Employment Agreement dated January 2, 2001 between Advantica and Nelson J. Marchioli
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the 2001 First Quarter Form 10-Q).

Amendment dated May 30, 2003 to Employment Agreement dated January 2, 2001 between
Denny’s Corporation (formerly doing business as Advantica) and Neison J. Marchioli (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Denny’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June
25, 2003 (the “2003 Second Quarter Form 10-Q”).

Amendment No. 1 dated as of June 30, 2003 to the Credit Agreement, dated as of December 16,
2002 among Denny’s Inc. and Denny’s Realty, Inc., as borrowers, Denny’s Corporation, Denny’s
Holdings, Inc. and DFO, Inc., the lenders named therein, JPMorgan Chase Bank, as issuing bank,
collateral agent and administrative agent, and Foothill Capital Corporation, as syndication agent
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the 2003 Second Quarter Form 10-Q).

Credit Agreement, dated as of December 16, 2002, As Amended and Restated as of September 26,
2003, among Denny’s Inc. and Denny’s Realty, Inc., as borrowers, Denny’s Corporation, Denny’s
Holdings., Inc. and DFO, Inc., as guarantors, the lenders named therein, JPMorgan Chase Bank, as
administrative agent, Wells Fargo Foothill, Inc. (f/k/a Foothill Capital Corporation), as syndication
agent and J.P. Morgan Securities Inc., as sole advisor, sole lead arranger and sole bookrunner
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Denny’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended September 24, 2003 (the “2003 Third Quarter Form 10-Q™)).
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Exhibit
No. Description

*10.27 Guarantee and Collateral Agreement, dated as of December 16, 2002, As Amended and Restated as
of September 26, 2003, among Denny’s Corporation, Denny’s Holdings, Inc., Denny’s Inc.,
Denny’s Realty, Inc., each other subsidiary loan party referenced therein and JPMorgan Chase, as
collateral agent (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the 2003 Third Quarter Form 10-Q).

+*10.28 Employment Agreement dated November 1, 2003 between Denny’s Corporation and Nelson J.
Marchioli (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the 2003 Third Quarter Form 10-Q).

21 Subsidiaries of Denny’s.
23.1 Consent of KPMG LLP.
23.2 Consent of Deloitte and Touche LLP.

31.1 Certification of Nelson J. Marchioli, President and Chief Executive Officer of Denny’s Corporation,
pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a), as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

31.2 Certification of Andrew F. Green, Chief Financial Officer of Denny’s Corporation, pursuant to
Rule 13a-14(a), as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

32.1 Statement of Nelson J. Marchioli, President and Chief Executive Officer of Denny’s Corporation,
and Andrew F. Green, Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of Denny’s Corporation,
pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act
of 2002.

99 Safe Harbor Under the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995.

+ Management contracts or compensatory plans or arrangements.

(b) Reports on Form 8-K:

On October 29, 2003, we reported on Form 8-K (under Items 7 and 12) that we issued a press release
on October 29, 2003 announcing same-store sales for our company-owned restaurants during the five weeks
period and the quarter ended September 24, 2003.

On October 3, 2003, we reported on Form 8-K (under Items 7 and 12) that we issued a press release on
October 3, 2003 announcing financial results for the quarter ended September 24, 2003.

On September 29, 2003, we reported on Form 8-K (under Items 5 and 7) that we issued a press release
on September 26, 2003 announcing that our operating subsidiaries, Denny’s Inc. and Denny’s Realty, Inc.,
have amended and restated their $125 million revolving credit facility to include a new $40 million term
loan, thereby increasing the aggregate commitments to $165 million.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Board of Directors
Denny’s Corporation:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of Denny’s Corporation and subsidiaries as
of December 31, 2003 and the related consolidated statements of operations, shareholders’ deficit and cash flows
for the fiscal year then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of Denny’s Corporation and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2003 and the results of their

operations and their cash flows for the year then ended, in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

KPMG LLP

Greenville, South Carolina
February 18, 2004
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of Denny’s Corporation and subsidiaries as
of December 25, 2002 and the related consolidated statements of operations, shareholders’ deficit and cash flows
for each of the two fiscal years in the period ended December 25, 2002. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
staternents based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of Denny’s Corporation and subsidiaries at December 25, 2002, and the resuits of
their consolidated operations and consolidated cash flows for each of the two fiscal years in the period ended
December 25, 2002, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

As discussed in Note 3 to the financial statements, in 2002 the Company changed its method of accounting

for goodwill (including reorganization value) and other intangible assets to conform to Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.”

DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP

Greenville, South Carolina
February 7, 2003
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DENNY’S CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Revenue:
Company restaurant sales .............. ...
Franchise and license revenue ... ........... ... ..o vu. ...

Total operatingrevenue . .. ...........c.cuvernennrn ..

Costs of company restaurant sales:
Product costs ........ .
Payrolland benefits . ........... ... . ... . i,
OCCUPANCY . . .ottt e e e e
Other oOperating eXpenses ... ........coeeueeneunenennennn

Total costs of company restaurant sales .................
Costs of franchise and licenserevenue ..........................
General and administrative eXpenses . .................oeueenn.n
Amortization of goodwill and other intangible assets with indefinite
JIVeS .o e
Depreciation and other amortization . ...........................
Restructuring charges and exit costs . ...... ... ... .. coiiin.n.
Impairment charges . ......... . i i
Gains on disposition of assets and other,net .....................

Total operating costs and expenses . ....................
Operating income (108S) . ...ttt

Other expenses:
Interest eXpense, Met .. ... ... ..uuuiinnenneeaanannnnn
Other nonoperating expense (income), net ...................

Total other expenses, net . ............covinnien,

Income (loss) before income taxes .......... ...t
Provision for (benefit from) income taxes .......................

Income (loss) from continuing operations .......................
Discontinued operations:
Income from operations of discontinued operations, net of income
tax benefit — $3,500 . . . ..o
Gain on disposal of discontinued operations, net of income tax
provision — $160 . ... .. .

Netincome (10SS) . ...t e e e e

Basic earnings per share:
Income (loss) from continuing operations ...................
Discontinued operations, net . . ....... .. .. i i

Netincome (1088) ..ot v it e

Diluted earnings per share:
Income (loss) from continuing operations ...................
Discontinued operations, et . . ............uiiirineaai...

Netincome (I0SS) . ... i e

Weighted average and equivalent shares outstanding:
Basic ...

Fiscal Year Ended
December 31, December 25, December 26,
2003 2002 2001

(In thousands, except per share amounts)

$851,853  $858,569 $ 949,180
89,092 90,015 90,548
940,945 948,584 1,039,728
219,193 205,036 237,721
368,641 361,483 382,864
49,033 49,198 55,941
118,563 122,491 142,281
755,430 738,208 818,807
27,125 28,576 32,262
51,268 50,001 66,920

— — 31,553
60,000 83,251 92,778

613 3,521 16,863
3,986 4,556 13,630
(5,844) 9,127) (13,340)
892,578 898086 1,059,473
48,367 49,598 (19,745)
78,190 76,401 73,235

901 (32,915) (6,007)
79,091 43,486 67,228
(30,724) 6,112 (86,973)

759 (1,422) 1,571
(31,483) 7,534 (88,544)

— 4,040 —

— 56,562 _
$(31,483) $ 68,136 $ (88,544)
$ 077 $ 019 $ (221

— 1.50 —
$ 077) $ 169 $  (2.21)
$ (077 $& 019 $ (2.21)

— 1.49 —
$ (077 $ 168 $  (2.21)
40,687 40,270 40,136
40,687 40,583 40,136

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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DENNY’S CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cashandcashequivalents .. ...... ... .. ... ... . .. . . . . i,
Receivables, less allowance for doubtful accounts of: 2003 — $1,706; 2002 —
L, 783 L
INVEMIOIIES o oottt e e e e e
Other o

Property,net ............ e e
Other Assets:
Goodwill ...
Intangible assets, NSt ... ... ... . e
Deferred financing costs, et .. ...ttt
Other

TOtal ASSEIS oo oo e e e

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Current maturities of notes and debentures ...................... ... . ...
Current maturities of capital lease obligations ...........................
Accountspayable ...... ... ...
O her

Long-Term Liabilities:
Notes and debentures, less current maturities . ..............eeninennon...
Capital lease obligations, less current maturities .. ............ouuveeven ..
Liability for insurance claims ............ . . i
Other noncurrent liabilities and deferred credits ... .......................

Total Long-Term Liabilities ............. ... i,
Total Liabilities ... ... ... i e

Commitments and contingencies

SHAREHOLDERS’ DEFICIT
Common Stock:
$0.01 par value; shares authorized — 100,000; issued and outstanding: 2003 —
41,003; 2002 — 40,200 . ...
Paid-incapital . ........ .. .. .
DefiCit . .

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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December 31, December 25,
2003 2002
(In thousands)
$ 7363 $ 5717
9,771 11,980
8,158 7,715
6,965 8,329
32,257 33,741
296,995 324,725
50,404 50,073
83,879 92,257
9,887 12,646
33,230 38,049
$ 506,652  $ 551,491
$ 51,714  § 554
3,462 3,886
40,617 50,660
96,932 97,703
192,725 152,803
509,593 560,359
28,728 31,177
25,585 25,160
62,953 60,883
626,859 677,579
819,584 830,382
410 403
417,816 417,415
(713,216)  (681,733)
(17,942) (14,976)
(312,932) (278,891)
$ 506,652  $ 551,491




DENNY’S CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS’ DEFICIT

Accumulated
Other
C hensi Total
____Common Stock Paid-in On}gzzllf: e Sharelololders’
Shares Amount  Capital Deficit (Loss) Deficit
(In thousands)
Balance, December 27,2000 ........... 40,058 $401 $417,203 $(661,325) $ (2,540)  $(246,261)
Comprehensive loss:
Netloss ..., — — — (88,544) — (88,544)
Other comprehensive loss:
Foreign currency translation
adjustments . ................ — — — — 80) (80)
Additional minimum pension
liability .................... — — — — (4,962) (4,962)
Comprehensiveloss ................ — — — (88,544) (5,042) (93,586)
Issuance of common stock ........... 8 — 90 — — 90
Balance, December 26,2001 ........... 40,143 401 417,293  (749,869) (7,582) (339,757)
Comprehensive income (loss): '
Netincome ..................... — — — 68,136 — 68,136
Other comprehensive income (loss):
Foreign currency translation
adjustments . ................ — — — — 176 176
Additional minimum pension
liability .................... — — — — (7,570) (7,570)
Comprehensive income (loss) ........ — — — 68,136 (7,394) 60,742
Issuance of common stock ........... 106 2 87 — — 89
Exercise of common stock options . ... 41 — 35 — — 35
Balance, December 25,2002 ........... 40,290 403 417415 (681,733) (14,976) (278,891)
Comprehensive loss:
Netloss .........oovvviienn... — — — (31,483) — (31,483)
Other comprehensive loss:
Additional minimum pension
liability .................... — — — — (2,966} (2,966)
Comprehensive loss ................ — — — (31,483) (2,966) (34,449)
Issuance of common stock ........... 713 7 401 — —_ 408
Balance, December 31,2003 ........... 41,003 $410 $417,816 $(713,216) $(17,942)  $(312,932)

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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DENNY’S CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Fiscal Year Ended
December 31, December 25, December 26,
2003 2002 2001
{In thousands)

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Net income (JOSS) ..ottt e e e et $(31,483)  $ 68,136 $(88,544)
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to cash flows from
operating activities:
Amortization of goodwill and other intangible assets with

indefinite lives . ... ... i —_ — 31,553
Depreciation and other amortization ........................ 60,000 83,251 92,778
Impairment charges . ..., 3,986 4,556 13,630
Restructuring charges and exitcosts ........................ 613 3,521 16,863
Amortization of deferred gains ........... ... ... ... .o (2,644) (7,551) (11,322)
Amortization of deferred financing costs .................... 5,390 4,551 3,440
Gains on disposition of assets and other,net ................. (5,844) 9,127) (13,340)
Gain on sale of discontinued operations, net ................. — (56,562) —
Income from discontinued operations, net ................... — (4.040) —
Amortization of debt premium ........... ... ... o oL (1,652) (1,795) (1,889)
(Gain) loss on early extinguishment of debt .................. 1,192 (32,900) (1,778)
Changes in assets and liabilities, net of effects of acquisitions and

dispositions:

Decrease (increase) in assets:
Receivables . ...... ... 2,865 (4,903) 8,106
INVENtories .. ...t e (443) 848 1,710
Other current assSets . . ..o oot tni i 1,445 881 1,519
Other assets ...ttt (1,785) (346) (3,698)
Increase (decrease) in liabilities: '
Accountspayable ........... ... .. ..ol (3,498) (3,156) (5,027)
Accrued salaries and vacations .................... 2,775 (7,701) (355)
Accruedtaxes .......... .. 1,335 1,226 (582)
Other accrued liabilities ......................... 2,121) (16,559) (19,871)
Other noncurrent liabilities and deferred credits . ... ... (3,523) (13,509) (9,033)
Net cash flows provided by operating activities ................... 26,608 8,821 8,160

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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DENNY’S CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS—(Continued)

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:

Purchase of property . .......... oo,
Proceeds from disposition of property ....... N
Receipts from (advances to) discontinued operations, net .......
Deposits refunded (made) to secure FRD letters of credit .......

Net cash flows (used in) provided by investing activities .. ..........

Cash Flows from Financing Activities:

Net borrowings (repayments) under credit agreement ..........
Deferred financing costspaid .......... ... ... o
Long-term debtpayments ... ......... . ..ot
Proceeds from exercise of stock options . ....................
Net change inbank overdrafts .. ...........................

Net cash flows (used in) provided by financing activities ...........

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents ..................

Cash and Cash Equivalents at:

Beginningof year ......... ... ...

Endofyear ...... ..o

Supplemental Cash Flow Information:

Income taxes paid (refunds received),net....................

Interestpaid ... i e

Noncash investing activities:

Notes received related to refranchising and sale of properties . . . .
Notes forgiven related to reacquisition of restaurants . . .........

Other investing activities ... ....... ... .o

Noncash financing activities:

Issuance of shares pursuant to compensation plans ............

Capital leasesentered into ... ......... ...,

Fiscal Year Ended
December 31, December 25, December 26,
2003 2002 2001
(In thousands)
$(32,025) $(41,689) $(41,117)
18,076 17,167 29,189
— 39,386 (53,339)
— 4,083 (9,790)
(13,949) 18,947 (75,057)
4,400 (12,000) 58,700
(3,256) (8,670) (964)
(7,413) (5,189) (6,936)
_ 35 —
(4,744) (2,923) (4,467)
(11,013) (28,747) 46,333
1,646 979) (20,564)
5,717 6,696 27,260
$ 7,363 $ 5717 $ 6,696
$ 627 $ (2,397) $ 2,191
$ 71,370 $ 76,992 $ 74,601
$ — 382 $ 1,433
$ 366 $ 186 $ 1,146
$ 1,467 $ 3,267 $ 2,068
$ 408 § — § —
$ 1,384 $ 1,176 $ 1,078

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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DENNY’S CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1. Introduction and Basis of Reporting

Denny’s Corporation, or Denny’s, is one of the largest restaurant companies in the United States. Denny’s is
the nation’s largest family-style restaurant chain in terms of market share and number of units. At December 31,
2003, Denny’s operated 561 company-owned and 1,077 franchised/licensed restaurants in 49 states, the District
of Columbia, 2 U.S. territories and 4 foreign countries, with principal concentrations in California, Florida and
Texas.

We also owned and operated the Coco’s and Carrows restaurant chains through our wholly owned
subsidiary, FRD Acquisition Co., or FRD, through July 10, 2002. On July 10, 2002, we completed the divestiture
of FRD. We have accounted for FRD as a discontinued operation in our consolidated financial statements in
accordance with Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 30, or APB 30, “Reporting the Results of Operations
— Reporting the Effects of Disposal of a Segment of a Business, and Extraordinary, Unusual and Infrequently
Occurring Events and Transactions.” See Note 14.

With the completion of the FRD divestiture, our predecessor, Advantica Restaurant Group, Inc., or
Advantica, completed its transition from a restaurant holding company to a one-brand entity; accordingly, on
July 10, 2002, we changed our name to Denny’s Corporation.

At December 31, 2003, we had a shareholders’ deficit of approximately $312.9 million and have incurred
net losses from continuing operations in two of the last three years. Our current senior secured credit facility, or
credit facility, expires on December 20, 2004. We continue to be dependent upon our credit facility in order to
provide sustained liquidity for continuing operations. We believe that our forecasted cash flow from operations
for 2004, combined with our capacity for additional borrowings under our credit facility, will enable us to meet
our anticipated cash requirements and fund capital expenditures until the expiration of our credit facility and
through the end of 2004 under the assumption that we successfully negotiate a replacement credit facility.

Our ability to maintain continuity of operations will depend on a number of factors, including our ability to
negotiate a replacement credit facility. We believe that we will be able to successfully refinance our credit
facility before it expires. If we are unable to negotiate a replacement credit facility, our financial condition and
results of operations will be materially affected. The accompanying financial statements do not include any
adjustments that might result from the outcome of this uncertainty. See Note 7.

We continue to explore possible alternatives to improve our long-term liquidity and capital structure. We
have not made a determination at this time whether we will ultimately seek to implement any specific alternative,
and there can be no assurance that, if we do, our efforts will be successful.

Note 2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The following accounting policies significantly affect the preparation of our consolidated financial
statements:

Use of Estimates. The preparation of these financial statements requires us to make estimates and judgments
that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses, and related disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities. On an ongoing basis, we evaluate our estimates. We base our estimates on historical
experience and on various other assumptions that we believe to be reasonable under the circumstances, the
results of which form the basis for making judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates under different
assumptions or conditions; however, we believe that our estimates are reasonable.
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DENNY’S CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

Consolidation Policy. The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of Denny’s
Corporation and its wholly-owned subsidiaries, the most significant of which are Denny’s Holdings, Inc.;
Denny’s, Inc.‘and DFO, Inc. All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in
consolidation.

Fiscal Year. Our fiscal year ends on the Wednesday in December closest to December 31 of each year. As a
result, a fifty-third week is added to a year every five or six years. Fiscal 2003 includes 53 weeks of operations.
Fiscal 2002 and 2001 each include 52 weeks of operations.

Cash Equivalents and Investments. We consider all highly liquid investments with an original maturity of
three months or less to be cash equivalents.

Allowances for Doubtful Accounts. We maintain allowances for doubtful accounts for estimated losses
resulting from the inability of our franchisees to make required payments for franchise royalties, rent, advertising
and notes receivable. In assessing recoverability of these receivables, we make judgments regarding the financial
condition of the franchisees based primarily on past and current payment trends and periodic financial
information which the franchisees are required to submit to us.

Inventories. Inventories are valued primarily at the lower of average cost (first-in, first-out) or market.

Property and Depreciation. We depreciate property by the straight-line method over its estimated useful
life. We amortize property held under capital leases (at capitalized value) over its estimated useful life, limited by
the lease term including option periods. The following estimated useful service lives were in effect during all
periods presented in the financial statements:

Buildings — Five to twenty years
Equipment — Two to ten years

Leasehold Improvements — Estimated useful life limited by the lease term including option periods,
generally between five and ten years.

Goodwill. Goodwill primarily represents goodwill recognized in accordance with SFAS 141, “Business
Combinations” and excess reorganization value recognized in accordance with American Institute of Certified
Public Accountants’ Statement of Position 90-7, or SOP 90-7, “Financial Reporting by Entities in Reorganization
Under the Bankruptcy Code” as a result of our 1998 bankruptcy. Prior to 2002, we amortized goodwill and
reorganization value on a straight-line basis over a period of no more than 20 years and 5 years, respectively;
however, such amortization was discontinued at the beginning of fiscal year 2002 in accordance with the
implementation of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142. See New Accounting Standards below
and Note 3.

Other Intangible Assets. Other intangible assets consist primarily of trademarks, trade names, franchise and
other operating agreements. These assets are amortized on the straight-line basis over the useful lives of the
franchise and other agreements and, through 2001, over 40 years for trade names and trademarks.. The
amortization for trade names and trademarks, which are considered indefinite-lived intangible assets, was
discontinued at the beginning of fiscal year 2002 in accordance with the implementation of SFAS 142. See New
Accounting Standards below and Note 3.

Deferred Financing Costs. Costs related to the issuance of debt are deferred and amortized as a component
of interest expense using a method that approximates the interest method over the terms of the respective debt
issues.
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DENNY’S CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

Cash Overdrafts. We have included in accounts payable on the consolidated balance sheets cash overdrafts
totaling $12.7 million and $17.4 million at December 31, 2003 and December 25, 2002, respectively.

Self-insurance liabilities. We record liabilities for insurance claims during periods in which we have been
insured under large deductible programs or have been self-insured for our medical and dental claims and
workers’ compensation, general/product and automobile insurance liabilities. Maximum self-insured retention,
including defense costs per occurrence, ranges from $0.5 to $1.0 million per individual claim for workers’
compensation and for general/product and automobile liability. The liabilities for prior and current estimated
incurred losses are discounted to their present value based on expected loss payment patterns determined by
independent actuaries. Total discounted insurance liabilities at December 31, 2003 and December 25, 2002 were
$37.2 million and $36.3 million, respectively, reflecting a 5% discount rate for 2003 and 2002. The related
undiscounted amounts at such dates were $41.8 million and $40.9 million, respectively.

Deferred Gains. In 1995, we sold our distribution subsidiary, Proficient Food Company, or PFC. In
conjunction with the sale, we entered into an eight-year distribution contract with the acquirer of PFC. This
transaction resulted in a deferred gain of approximately $30.0 million that was amortized on a straight-line basis
through September 2003 as a reduction of product costs. During 1996, we sold Portion-Trol Foods, Inc., or PTF,
and the Mother Butler Pies division of Denny’s, our two food processing operations. In conjunction with these
sales, we entered into five-year purchasing agreements with the acquirers. These transactions resulted in deferred
gains totaling approximately $32.4 million that were amortized through December 26, 2001. Related to these
purchasing agreements, we recognized gains of $2.6 million, $3.8 million and $9.3 million in 2003, 2002 and
2001, respectively. We reported deferred gain balances related to these purchasing agreements of $2.6 million in
our consolidated balance sheet at December 25, 2002. The remaining balance of deferred gains was amortized
through September 2003. No deferred gain balances remain as of December 31, 2003.

During 2001, we received $2.0 million from the sale of 25,000 shares of preferred stock of PTF’s acquirer
that we had received as consideration for the sale of PTF to the acquirer. At the date of the sale of PTF, we
assigned no value to this portion of the consideration. Therefore, the gain on the sale of this preferred stock was
$2.0 million. This gain was recorded as a reduction of product costs as it represented additional deferred gain on
the sale of PTF. The purchasing agreement related to Mother Butler Pies expired on July 31, 2001 and the
purchasing agreement related to PTF expired on December 31, 2001. During 2001, we extended our purchasing
agreement with PTF through December 31, 2002 in exchange for, among other things, waiving the remaining
$3.7 million of purchase commitment liabilities of certain discontinued operations related to PTF. As a result, the
remaining $3.7 million, which was included in our deferred gain balance at December 26, 2001 was amortized
through December 25, 2002 as a reduction of product costs. ‘

Income Taxes. We record a valuation allowance to reduce our net deferred tax assets to the amount that is
more likely than not to be realized. While we have primarily considered ongoing, prudent and feasible tax
planning strategies in assessing the need for our valuation allowance, in the event we were to determine that we
would be able to realize our deferred tax assets in the future in an amount in excess of the net recorded amount,
an adjustment to the valuation allowance (except for the valuation allowance established in connection with the
adoption of fresh start reporting on January 7, 1998 — see Note 9) would decrease income tax expense in the
period such determination was made. At December 31, 2003 and December 25, 2002, the Company’s net
deferred tax assets were fully reserved.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments. Our significant financial instruments are cash and cash equivalents,
investments, receivables, accounts payable, accrued liabilities and long-term debt. Except for long-term debt, the
fair value of these financial instruments approximate their carrying values based on their short maturities. See
Note 7 for information about the fair value of long-term debi.

F-11




DENNY’S CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

Contingencies and Litigation. We are subject to legal proceedings involving ordinary and routine claims
incidental to our business as well as legal proceedings that are nonroutine and include compensatory or punitive
damage claims. Our ultimate legal and financial liability with respect to such matters cannot be estimated with
certainty and requires the use of estimates in recording liabilities for potential litigation settlements.

Company Restaurant Sales. Company restaurant sales are recognized when food and beverage products are
sold at company-owned units. Proceeds from the sale of gift certificates are deferred and recognized as revenue
when they are redeemed.

Franchise and License Fees. We recognize initial franchise and license fees when all of the material
obligations have been performed and conditions have been satisfied, typically when operations of a new
franchised restaurant have commenced. During 2003, 2002 and 2001, we recorded initial fees of $1.4 million,
$1.9 million and $2.9 million, respectively. At December 31, 2003 and December 25, 2002, deferred fees were
$1.2 million and $2.1 million, respectively. Continuing fees, such as royalties and rents, are recorded as income
on a monthly basis. For 2003, our ten largest franchisees accounted for approximately 29.0% of our franchise
revenues.

Advertising Costs. We expense production costs for radio and television advertising in the year in which the
commercials are initially aired. Advertising expense for 2003, 2002 and 2001 was $29.0 million, $35.2 million
and $39.1 million, respectively, net of contributions from franchisees of $33.7 million, $33.2 million and $32.3
million, respectively.

Restructuring and exit costs. Restructuring and exit costs consist primarily of severance and outplacement
costs for terminated employees and the costs of future obligations related to closed units or units identified for
closure.

In assessing the discounted liabilities for future costs of obligations related to closed units or units identified
for closure prior to December 26, 2002, the date we adopted SFAS 146, we make assumptions regarding the
timing of units’ closures, amounts of future subleases, amounts of future property taxes and costs of closing the
units.

As a result of the adoption of SFAS 146, discounted liabilities for future lease costs and the fair value of
related subleases of units closed after December 25, 2002 are recorded when the unit is closed. All other costs
related to the units closures, including property taxes and maintenance related costs, are expensed as incurred.

Impairment of long-lived assets. We assess impairment of long-lived assets such as owned and leased
property whenever changes or events indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable. We assess
impairment of restaurant-level assets based on the operating cash flows of the restaurant and our plans for
restaurant closings. In accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 144, or SFAS 144, we
write down long-lived assets to fair value if, based on an analysis, the sum of the expected future undiscounted
cash flows is less than the carrying amount of the assets.

Gains on Sales of Company-Owned Restaurants. We typically do not include real estate in our sales of
company-owned restaurants; therefore, we recognize gains on sale transactions at the time collection of the sales
price is reasonably assured. Any gains on sales of company-owned restaurants and surplus properties that include
real estate are recognized when the cash proceeds from the sale exceed the minimum requirements (generally
20% of the sale price) as set forth in SFAS 66, “Accounting for Sales of Real Estate.” Total proceeds from the
sales of company-owned restaurants and surplus properties were $18.1 million, $17.5 million and $30.6 million
in 2003, 2002, and 2001, respectively. Of those amounts, we received cash proceeds of $18.1 million, $17.2
million, and $29.2 million in 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.
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DENNY’S CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

Stock Options. We have adopted the disclosure-only provisions of SFAS 123, “Accounting for Stock Based
Compensation,” while continuing to follow Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25, or APB 25,
“Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees,” and related interpretations in accounting for our stock-based
compensation plans (i.e., the “intrinsic method”). Under APB 25, because the exercise price of our employee
stock options equals or exceeds the market price of the underlying stock on the date of grant, no compensation
expense has been recognized in our statements of operations.

For purposes of pro forma disclosures, the estimated fair value of the options is amortized to expense over
the options’ vesting period. Our pro forma information follows:

2003 2002 2001
(In millions,
except per share data)
Reported net income (1088) . ...... ... ... i, $(31.5) $68.1 $(88.5)
Less total stock-based compensation expense determined under
fair value based method, net of related tax effects ......... 14 1.9 2.4

Pro forma netincome (loss) ............ ... ............ $(32.9) $66.2  $(90.9)
Basic:

ASTEPOTtEd ...\ttt e $0.77) $1.69 $(2.21)

Proforma .......... .. ... .. .. . . . 0.81) 1.64 (2.26)
Diluted:

Asreported ... ... 0.77) 1.68 2.2D)

Proforma ......... ... .. . . . . . (0.81) 1.63 (2.26)

Pro forma information regarding net income and earnings per share is required by SFAS 123 and has been
determined as if we had accounted for our employee stock options granted under the fair value method of that
statement. The fair value of the stock options granted in 2003, 2002 and 2001 was estimated at the date of grant
using the Black-Scholes option pricing model. We used the following weighted average assumptions for the
grants:

2003 2002 2001
Dividendyield ........... ... .. ... oo, 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Expected volatility ................. ... ... .. .. 1.00 0.92 0.95
Risk-free interestrate . ............ ... ... ...... 4.3% 4.0% 52%
Weighted average expectedlife ................... 6.1 years 5.0 years 8.8 years

Earnings Per Share. Basic earnings (loss) per share is calculated by dividing net income (loss) by the
weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings (loss) per share is
calculated by dividing net income (loss) by the weighted average number of common shares and common stock
equivalents outstanding during the period. See Note 12.

New Accounting Standards. In July 2001, the FASB issued SFAS 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible
Assets,” which became effective for us on December 27, 2001, the first day of our 2002 fiscal year. SFAS 142
requires us, among other things, to discontinue goodwill amortization, including the amortization of
reorganization value. In addition, the standard provides for reclassifying certain intangibles as goodwill,
reassessing the useful lives of intangibles, reclassifying certain intangibles out of previously reported goodwill
and identifying reporting units for purposes of assessing potential future impairments of goodwill. See Note 3 for
a discussion of the effects of adopting this new accounting standard.
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DENNY’S CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

In October 2001, the FASB issued SFAS 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived
Assets,” which addresses financial accounting and reporting for the impairment or disposal of long-lived assets.
SFAS 144 supersedes SFAS 121, “Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived
Assets to be Disposed Of,” and the accounting and reporting provisions of Accounting Principles Board Opinion
No. 30, “Reporting the Results of Operations — Reporting the Effects of Disposal of a Segment of a Business,
and Extraordinary, Unusual and Infrequently Occurring Events and Transactions,” related to the disposal of a
segment of a business. SFAS 144 became effective for us on December 27, 2001, the first day of our 2002 fiscal
year. Our adoption of SFAS 144 had no impact on our consolidated financial statements.

In April 2002, the FASB issued SFAS 1435, “Rescission of FASB Statements No. 4, 44, and 64, Amendment
of FASB Statements No. 13, and Technical Corrections.” Among other things, SFAS 145 eliminates FASB
Statement No. 4, or SFAS 4, “Reporting Gains and Losses from Extinguishment of Debt.” Under SFAS 4, all
gains and losses from extinguishment of debt were required to be aggregated and, if material, classified as an
extraordinary item, net of any related income tax effect. As a result of the elimination of SFAS 4, gains and
losses from extinguishment of debt should be classified as extraordinary items only if they meet the criteria in
APB Opinion No. 30, “Reporting the Results of Operations — Reporting the Effects of Disposal of a Segment of
a Business, and Extraordinary, Unusual and Infrequently Occurring Events and Transactions.” The provisions of
SFAS 145 related to the rescission of SFAS 4 are effective for fiscal years beginning after May 15, 2002. We
early adopted SFAS 145 in the second quarter of 2002. As a result, we reclassified a $7.8 million extraordinary
item recorded in 2001 to our nonoperating income during 2002. In addition, our gains from extinguishment of
debt in 2002 were also reported in nonoperating expense (income).

In June 2002, the FASB issued SFAS 146, “Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal
Activities.” This statement replaces Emerging Issues Task Force (EITF) Issue No. 94-3, “Liability Recognition
for Certain Employee Termination Benefits and Other Costs to Exit an Activity (including certain costs incurred
in a restructuring)”. The principal difference between SFAS 146 and EITF 94-3 relates to its requirements for
recognition of a liability for a cost associated with an exit or disposal activity. This statement requires that a
liability for a cost associated with an exit or disposal activity be recognized when the liability is incurred. Under
EITF 94-3, a liability for an exit cost as defined in EITF 94-3 was recognized at the date of an entity’s
commitment to an exit plan. A fundamental conclusion reached by the Board in this Statement is that an entity’s
commitment to a plan, by itself, does not create a present obligation to others that meets the definition of a
liability. SFAS 146 eliminates the definition and requirements for recognition of exit costs in EITF 94-3. This
statement also establishes that fair value is the objective for initial measurement of the liability. The adoption of
this statement did not have a material impact on our financial position and results of operations; however, the
timing of the recognition of future costs under SFAS 146 will be substantially different than the timing under
EITF 94-3. SFAS 146 became effective for exit and disposal activities initiated after December 31, 2002 and did
not result in a material difference in our computation of exit cost charges when compared to what we would have
recorded under EITF 94-3.

FASB Interpretation No. 45, or FIN 43, “Guarantor’s Accounting and Disclosure Requirements for
Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others,” was issued in November 2002. FIN 45
elaborates on the disclosures to be made by a guarantor in its interim and annual financial statements about its
obligations under certain guarantees that it has issued. It also clarifies that a guarantor is required to recognize, at
the inception of a guarantee, a lability for the fair value of the obligation undertaken in issuing the guarantee.
The initial recognition and initial measurement provisions of FIN 45 are applicable on a prospective basis to
guarantees issued or modified after December 31, 2002. The disclosure requirements became effective for
financial statements of interim or annual periods ending after December 15, 2002. The adoption of FIN 45 had no
material impact on our consolidated financial statements.
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In December 2002, the FASB issued SFAS 148, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation — Transition
and Disclosure — an amendment of FASB Statement No. 123”. SFAS 148 amends SFAS 123, “Accounting for
Stock Based Compensation” and provides for alternative methods for accounting for a change by registrants to
the fair value method of accounting for stock-based compensation. The transition guidance and annual disclosure
provision of the statement are effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2002. In accordance with
the statement, we will continue to use the intrinsic value method and disclose the required pro-forma information
in the notes to the consolidated financial statements. See Note 2.

In January 2003, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation (FIN) No. 46, “Consolidation of Variable Interest
Entities.” In December 2003, the FASB issued FIN No. 46 (Revised) (FIN 46-R) to address certain FIN 46
implementation issues. This interpretation clarifies the application of Accounting Research Bulletin (ARB)

No. 51, “Consolidated Financial Statements,” for companies that have interests in entities that are Variable
Interest Entities (VIE) as defined under FIN 46. According to this interpretation, if a company has an interest in a
VIE and is at risk for a majority of the VIE’s expected losses or receives a majority of the VIE’s expected gains,
it shall consolidate the VIE. FIN 46-R also requires additional disclosures by primary beneficiaries and other
significant variable interest holders. For entities acquired or created before February 1, 2003, this interpretation is
effective no later than the end of the first interim or reporting period ending after March 15, 2004, except for
those VIE’s that are considered to be special purpose entities, for which the effective date is no later than the end
of the first interim or annual reporting period ending after December 15, 2003. For all entities that were acquired
subsequent to January 31, 2003, this interpretation is effective as of the first interim or annual period ending after
December 31, 2003. The adoption of the provisions of this interpretation did not have a material effect on our
consolidated financial statements as of and for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2003. We will fully adopt FIN
46-R during the first quarter of 2004. We currently do not expect the adoption of FIN 46-R to have a material
effect on our consolidated financial statements. However, we are still assessing the impact of FIN 46-R on
certain transactions that occurred before February 1, 2003 in which we provided financial support to franchisees
in the form of notes payable or direct financing leases for approximately 31 of our 1,077 franchised units.
Therefore, the full impact of adopting FIN 46-R cannot be fully established at the present time.

In May 2003, the FASB issued SFAS No. 150, “Accounting for Certain Financial Instruments with
Characteristics of Both Liabilities and Equity.” SFAS 150 clarifies the accounting for certain financial
instruments with characteristics of both liabilities and equity and requires that those instruments be classified as
liabilities in statements of financial position. Previously, many of those financial instruments were classified as
equity. SFAS 150 is effective for financial instruments entered into or modified after May 31, 2003, and
otherwise is effective at the beginning of the first interim period beginning after June 15, 2003. The adoption of
the provisions of SFAS 150 had no material effect on our consolidated financial statements.

In December 2003 the FASB issued SFAS No. 132 (Revised) (SFAS 132-R), “Employer’s Disclosure about
Pensions and Other Postretirement Benefits.” SFAS 132-R retains disclosure requirements of the original SFAS
132 and requires additional disclosures relating to assets, obligations, cash flows, and net periodic benefit cost.
SFAS 132-R is effective for fiscal years ending after December 15, 2003, except that certain disclosures are
effective for fiscal years ending after June 15, 2004. Interim period disclosures are effective for interim periods
beginning after December 15, 2003. See Note 10.

Note 3. Change in Accounting for Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

We adopted SFAS 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,” at the beginning of fiscal year 2002, and as
a result we are no longer amortizing reorganization value, goodwill and trade names.

During the first quarter of 2002, we completed our transitional testing of the useful lives of intangible assets
with definite lives and our transitional assessment of impairment of goodwill and other intangible assets with
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indefinite lives as required by SFAS 142. We performed an impairment test and determined that none of the
recorded goodwill or other intangible assets with indefinite lives was impaired and we concluded that the useful
lives of intangible assets with definite lives were appropriate.

In accordance with SFAS 142, goodwill and other intangible assets with indefinite lives are tested for
impairment at least annually, and more frequently if circumstances indicate that they may be impaired. We
performed an annual impairment test as of December 31, 2003 and determined that none of the recorded
goodwill or other intangible assets with indefinite lives was impaired.

The changes in carrying amounts of goodwill, including amounts previously reported as reorganization
value, for the year ended December 31, 2003, following the adoption of SFAS 142 are as follows:

(In thousands)
Balance at December 25, 2002 . ..o $50,073
Goodwill related to acquisition of restaurant units .............. 331
Balance at December 31,2003 .. ... ...t $50,404

The following table reflects intangible assets as reported at December 31, 2003 and at December 25, 2002:

December 31,2003 | December 285, 2002
Gross Gross
Carrying Accumulated Carrying Accumulated
Amount Amortization Amount Amortization
(In thousands)
Intangible assets with indefinite lives:
Tradenames ..............c.ccouunn.. $ 42,323 $§ — $ 42,323 $ —
Liquor licenses ..................... 356 — 1,084 —
Intangible assets with definite lives:
Franchise agreements ................ 72,820 32,203 76,395 28,332
Foreign license agreements ........... 1,780 1,197 1,780 993

$117,279 $33,400 $121,582 $29,325

Estimated amortization expense for intangible assets with definite lives in the next five years is as follows:

(In thousands)
2004 ... P $5,436
2005 L 5,270
2006 . e e 4,990
2007 L e e e 4,570
2008 e e e 3,929
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The following table reflects consolidated operating results as though we adopted SFAS 142 as of the
beginning of the year ended December 26, 2001:

2003 2002 2001
(In thousands)
Reported net income (108S) .. .o oo evvt v $(31,483) $68,136  $(88,544)
Add back amortization of reorganization value ............... — — 28,692
Add back goodwill amortization .. ......................... — — 1,686
Add back trade name amortization .............. ... ... .. — — 1,175
Adjusted net income (10SS) . ........ ... $(31,483) 868,136  $(56,991)
Reported basic net income (loss) pershare ................... $ 077 $ 169 § (221
Add back amortization of reorganization value ............... — — 0.72
Add back goodwill amortization .. ......................... — — 0.04
Add back trade name amortization .................. ... ... —_ — 0.03
Adjusted netincome (I0SS) . ..., $ 077 $ 169 §$§ (142)
Reported diluted net income (loss) pershare ................. $ 077 $ 168 $ (22D
Add back amortization of reorganization value ............... — — 0.72
Add back goodwill amortization .. .............c.. ... ... — —_ 0.04
Add back trade name amortization .................. .. ..... —_ — 0.03
Adjusted netincome (10SS) . ... ... $ (077) $ 168 $ (1.42)

Note 4. Restructuring Charges and Exit Costs

As a result of changes in our organizational structure and in our portfolio of restaurants, we have recorded
charges for restructuring and exit costs. These costs consist primarily of severance and outplacement costs for
terminated employees and the costs of future obligations related to closed units.

In assessing the discounted liabilities for future costs related to units closed or identified for closure prior to
December 26, 2002, the date we adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 146 “Accounting for
Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities,” or SFAS 146, we make assumptions regarding the timing of
units’ closures, amounts of future subleases, amounts of future property taxes and costs of closing the units. If
these assumptions or their related estimates change in the future, we may be required to record additional exit
costs or reduce exit costs previously recorded. Exit costs recorded for each of the periods presented include the
effect of such changes in estimates.

As a result of the adoption of SFAS 146, discounted liabilities for future lease costs and the fair value of
related subleases of units closed after December 25, 2002 are recorded when the unit is closed. All other costs

related to unit closures, including property taxes and maintenance related costs, are expensed as incurred.

Restructuring charges and exit costs were comprised of the following:

2003 2002 2001
(In thousands)
EXIECOSES « vttt et et $(1,543) $3,271  $11,861
Severance and other restructuring charges .............. $2,156 $ 250 $ 5,002
Total restructuring charges and exitcosts . .......... $ 613 $3,521 $16,863
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Exit costs recorded in 2003 primarily resulted from the reversal of approximately $1.6 million of exit costs
recorded after we entered into a settlement agreement on the lease for our former corporate headquarters.
Severance and other restructuring costs in 2003 relate to the elimination of approximately sixty out-of-restaurant
support staff positions, all of which occurred during the fourth quarter of 2003.

Exit costs recorded in 2002 consist of approximately $0.9 million related to the closure of underperforming
units and $2.4 million related to remaining lease obligations on Denny’s former corporate headquarters facility
due to the bankruptcy of a significant subtenant. Restructuring costs in 2002 relate to the elimination of thirty-
three out-of-restaurant support staff positions. See Note 14.

Exit costs recorded in 2001 relate to the identification of underperforming units for closure. Restructuring
costs in 2001 include severance and other administrative costs related to the elimination of approximately 90 out-

of-restaurant support staff positions.

The components of the change in accrued exit cost liabilities are as follows:

(In thousands)
Balance, December 25,2002 .. ... i $19,680
Provisions for units closed in2003 .................. 228
Reversals of accrued exitcosts,net . ................. (1,771)
Payments,net . ... ... ..o (6,883)
Interest accretion (included in interest expense) . ....... 1,790
Balance, December 31,2003 .................o... .. $13,044

Estimated cash payments related to exit cost liabilities in the next five years are as follows:

(In thousands)

2004 L e e $ 3,608
2005 . 2,284
2000 ..o e 1,881
2007 1,684
2008 . 1,280
Thereafter ...t 9,046

Total ... .o 19,783
Lessimputedinterest .. ............ccvveninnnn... 6,739
Present value of exit cost liabilities .................. $13,044

During 2003, 2002 and 2001, we recorded severance and outplacement costs related to restructuring plans of
$6.5 million. Through December 31, 2003, approximately $5.4 million of these costs have been paid, of which
$1.4 million was paid during the year ended December 31, 2003. The remaining balance of severance and
placement costs of $1.1 million is expected to be paid during 2004.
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Note 5. Property, Net

Property, net, consists of the following:

December 31, December 25,
2003 2002

(In thousands)

Property owned and subject to operating leases:

Land ... .. $ 58,085 $ 62,360
Buildings and improvements ....................... 401,184 393,050
Other property and equipment ...................... 118,530 108,913
Total property owned .. .......... ... ... ... ... 577,799 564,323
Less accumulated depreciation ..................... 297,880 259,620
Property owned,net . ..... .. ... ... ... .. L., 279,919 304,703

Property subject to capital leases:
Buildings and improvements, vehicles, and other

equipment held under capital leases. ............... 41,487 44,902
Less accumulated amortization ................... .. 24,411 24,880
Property held under capital leases, net . .......... N 17,076 20,022

$296,995 $324,725

Subtantially all owned property is pledged as collateral for the senior secured credit facility. See Note 7.

Note 6. Other Current Liabilities

Other current liabilities consist of the following:

December 31, December 25,

2003 2002
(In thousands)

Accrued salaries and vacations .. ...........i i $24,831 $22,384
Accrued insurance, primarily current portion of liability for

insurance claims .. ... e 17,934 16,071
ACCIUEd taXeS . .. oot e 12,035 10,700
Accrued INerest . ..ot i i e 23,469 22,694
Other .. e e 18,663 25,854

$96,932 $97,703
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Note 7. Debt and Liquidity
Long-term debt consists of the following:

December 31, December 25,

2003 2002
(In thousands)

Notes and Debentures:
11¥4% Senior Notes due January 15, 2008, interest payable semi-

annually .. ... $378,970 $378,970
12%4% Senior Notes due September 30, 2007, interest payable semi-

annually . ... 120,389 120,389
11.0% Term Loans due December 20,2004 .............. . oo .. 40,000 —
Revolving loans outstanding under credit facility, due December 20,

2004 L e e 11,100 46,700

Other notes payable, maturing over various terms to 10 years, payable in

monthly and semi-annual installments with interest rates ranging from

T5%t09.17% (A) oot 586 3,626
Notes payable secured by equipment, maturing over various terms up to

6 years, payable in monthly and quarterly installments with interest

rates ranging from 9.0% to 11.97% () ......... ... ... 1,243 1,749
Capital lease obligations (see Note 8) ............................ 32,190 35,063
584,478 586,497
Premium (discount), net (c):

11 Ya% Senior Notes, effectiverate 10.79% ................... 9,019 10,721
Othernotespayable ......... .. .. .. ... ... — (1,242)
Total debt ... ... ..ot i e e 593,497 595,976
Less current Maturities . . ... ..ottt i e e 55,176 4,440
Total long-termdebt ....... ...t $538,321 $591,536

(a) Includes notes collateralized by restaurant and other properties with a net book value of $0.3 million at
December 31, 2003.

(b) Includes notes collateralized by equipment with a net book value of $0.4 million at December 31, 2003.
(c) Upon emergence from bankruptcy on January 7, 1998, we adopted fresh start reporting in accordance with
SOP 90-7 and adjusted our liabilities to their fair values, which resulted in our recording premiums or

discounts related to our long-term notes.

Aggregate annual maturities of long-term debt, excluding capital lease obligations, at December 31, 2003
are as follows:

Year: (In thousands)
2004 .. e e $ 51,714
20008 e e e e 292
2006 .. e 185
2007 e e 120,593
2008 L e e e 379,130
Thereafter .......... ... .o, 374
$552,288
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11Y4% Senior Notes Due 2008

At December 31, 2003, Denny’s Corporation had outstanding $379.0 million aggregate principal amount of
11 ¥a% Notes due 2008, or 11 ¥4% Notes. The 11 Va% Notes are senior unsecured obligations of Denny’s
Corporation and rank pari passu in right of payment to all senior indebtedness of Denny’s Corporation, including
the obligations of Denny’s Corporation under the credit facility. However, the 11 Y4% Notes are effectively
subordinated to Denny’s secured indebtedness, including indebtedness under the credit facility to the extent of
the lenders’ security interests in Denny’s assets, and structurally subordinated to indebtedness of the subsidiaries
of Denny’s Corporation under both the credit facility and the 12%4% Senior Notes due 2007. Interest on the
11 ¥a% Notes is payable semi-annually on each July 15 and January 15 of each year. They will mature on
January 15, 2008.

The 11%4% Notes are redeemable, in whole or in part, at the option of Denny’s at any time on or after
January 14, 2004, at a redemption price equal to 103.750% of the principal amount thereof up to and including
January 14, 2005, at 101.875% of the principal amount thereof up to and including January 14, 2006, and
thereafter at 100% of the principal amount thereof, together in each case with accrued interest.

12%4 % Senior Notes Due 2007

On April 15, 2002, we issued $70.4 million aggregate principal amount of Denny’s Corporation’s 12%4 %
Senior Notes due 2007, or 12%4% Notes, in exchange for $88.1 million aggregate principal amount of our 11 ¥4%
Notes. . During the fourth quarter of 2002, we closed a series of privately negotiated transactions whereby we
issued an additional $50.0 million aggregate principal amount of 12%4% Notes in exchange for $62.5 million
aggregate principal amount of 11 ¥4% Notes. As a result of our completing the exchanges, we recorded a gain of
approximately $32.9 million during the year ended December 25, 2002 (which is included in other nonoperating
expense (income) in the accompanying financial statements). In addition, costs of approximately $2.3 million
incurred in connection with this exchange of debt were deferred and will be amortized over the term of the
12 ¥%4% Notes.

At December 31, 2003 Denny’s Corporation and Denny’s Holdings, Inc. have outstanding $120.4 million
aggregate principal amount of Denny’s Corporation’s and Denny’s Holdings, Inc.’s 12%4% Notes. Denny’s
Corporation and its wholly owned subsidiary, Denny’s Holdings, Inc. (the direct parent of Denny’s restaurant
operating subsidiaries), are jointly obligated with respect to the 123%4% Notes; therefore, the 12 %4% Notes are
structurally senior to the 11 %% Notes. The 123%2% Notes are senior unsecured obligations of Denny’s
Corporation and Denny’s Holdings, Inc. and rank pari passu in right of payment to all senior indebtedness of
Denny’s Corporation and Denny’s Holdings, Inc., including the obligations of Denny’s Corporation and Denny’s
Holdings, Inc. under the credit facility. However, the 12%4% Notes are effectively subordinated to Denny’s
secured indebtedness, including indebtedness under the credit facility to the extent of the lenders’ security
interests in Denny’s assets, and structurally subordinated to indebtedness of the subsidiaries of Denny’s
Holdings, Inc. under the credit facility. Interest on the 12%4% Notes is payable semi-annually on March 31 and
September 30 of each year. They will mature on September 30, 2007.

The 12 %1% Notes will be redeemable, in whole or in part, at the option of Denny’s at any time on or after
September 30, 2004, at 106.375% of their principal amount thereof up to and including September 30, 2006, and
thereafter at 100% of the principal amount thereof, together in each case with accrued interest.

Credit Facility

In December of fiscal 2002, we entered into a new senior secured credit facility, or credit facility, which
initially provided Denny’s with a working capital and letter of credit facility of up to $125 million. We obtained
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an amendment to the credit facility to provide less restrictive financial covenants effective for the quarter ended
June 25, 2003 and the remaining term of the credit facility. On September 26, 2003, we amended and restated our
$125 million credit facility to include $40 million of term loans, thereby increasing the aggregate commitments
to $165 million. The new term loans will not amortize prior to maturity. We used the $40 million term loan
proceeds to pay down outstanding revolving loans, thus increasing availability under the revolving portion of the
credit facility and enhancing our current liquidity position. Effective December 31, 2003, commitments under the
Denny’s credit facility were reduced to $161 million as scheduled in the credit agreement. The amended and
restated facility, including the new term loans, will to mature on December 20, 2004.

At December 31, 2003, we had outstanding revolving loans of $11.1 million, letters of credit of $35.1
million and term loans of $40.0 million under our credit facility, leaving net availability of $74.8 million.
Revolving loans under the credit facility accrue interest at a variable rate (approximately 6.7% at December 31,
2003) based on the prime rate or an adjusted Eurodollar rate. Term loans bear interest at a fixed rate of 11.00%
per annum.

The credit facility is generally secured by liens on the stock of our subsidiaries, accounts receivable,
intellectual property, cash and cash accounts. In addition, the facility is secured by first-priority mortgages on
240 owned restaurant properties and our corporate headquarters located in Spartanburg, South Carolina, with an
aggregate fair value of approximately $248 million (which represents substantially all of our owned properties),
based on appraisals obtained October 2002. Denny’s Corporation and its subsidiaries are guarantors under the
credit facility. The credit facility contains certain financial covenants (i.e., minimum EBITDA (as defined under
the credit facility) requirements, total debt to EBITDA ratio requirements and total senior secured debt to
EBITDA requirements), negative covenants, conditions precedent, material adverse change provisions, events of
default and other terms, conditions and provisions customarily found in credit agreements for leveraged
financings. We were in compliance with the terms of the credit facility, as amended, as of December 31, 2003
and we expect to remain in compliance with the terms of our credit facility through its expiration date.

We believe we will be able to successfully obtain a replacement senior secured credit facility, based on the
following key considerations:

1) Although we are a highly leveraged company, our senior secured leverage (total debt less our 11 V4%
Notes and 12%4% Notes) is relatively low which we believe provides sufficient capacity for an
adequate replacement facility.

2) We benefit from a significant owned real estate portfolio that would be available as collateral, if
needed, for a replacement facility. These assets have an aggregate fair value of approximately $248
million, which is well in excess of our credit facility needs.

3) Other than our credit facility, we have no other significant debt maturities coming due until our senior
notes mature in 2007 and 2008.

4) Despite our non-investment grade credit profile, we believe there is a relatively strong market for a
secured loan transaction for Denny’s, especially among institutional lenders, based on preliminary
discussions with potential interested sources.

Fair Value of Long-Term Debt

The estimated fair value of our fixed rate long-term debt (excluding capital lease obligations and revolving
credit facility advances) is approximately $439.8 million at December 31, 2003. The computation is based on
market quotations for the same or similar debt issues or the estimated borrowing rates available to us. The
difference between the estimated fair value of long-term debt compared to its historical cost reported in our
consolidated balance sheets at December 31, 2003 relates primarily to market quotations for our 11 V4% Notes.
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Note 8. Leases and Related Guarantees

Our operations utilize property, facilities, equipment and vehicles leased from others. Buildings and
facilities are primarily used for restaurants and support facilities. Restaurants are operated under lease
arrangements which generally provide for a fixed basic rent, and, in some instances, contingent rent based on a
percentage of gross revenues. Initial terms of land and restaurant building leases generally are not less than 15
years exclusive of options to renew. Leases of other equipment primarily consist of restaurant equipment,
computer systems and vehicles.

We lease certain owned and leased property, facilities and equipment to others. Our net investment in direct
financing leases receivable is as follows:

December 31, December 25,

2003 2002
(In thousands)
Total minimum rents receivable ........................ $10,101 $9,637
Lessunearnedincome ................ ... .. . in. ... 6,962 6,794
Net investment in direct financing leases receivable ... ... ... $ 3,139 $2,843

Minimum future lease commitments and amounts to be received as lessor or sublessor under non-cancelable
leases, including leases for both open and closed units, at December 31, 2003 are as follows:

Commitments Lease Receipts
Direct
Year: Capital Operating Financing Operating
(In thousands)

2004 . e _ $ 7,732 $ 48,027 $ 693 $ 24,392
2005 e 7,220 45,015 693 23,983
2006 ... 6,922 42,142 693 23,464
2007 e 6,354 38,014 693 22,896
2008 ... e 5,561 32,924 693 21,624
Thereafter .............. ... . i, 26,809 141,914 6,636 187,695

Total ... . e 60,598  $348,036  $10,101 $304,054
Less imputed interest ...................c.oon.. 28,408
Present value of capital lease obligations . ......... $32,190

The total rental expense included in the determination of income (loss) from continuing operations is as
follows:

2003 2002 2001
(In thousands)
Baserents ......... . e $44,505 $44900 $46,540
Contingentrents . ......ovvueeeinineereinennnnn.. 6,201 6,336 6,768

$50,706  $51,236  $53,308

Total rental expense in the above table does not reflect sublease rental income of $28.6 million, $29.4
million and $29.8 million for 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.
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Note 9. Income Taxes

A summary of the provision for (benefit from) income taxes attributable to the income (loss) from
continuing operations is as follows:

2003 2002 2001
(In thousands)
Current:
Federal . ..ottt $— $(2,742) $ —
State, foreign andother ............... ... . .. .. 759 1,320 1,571
759 (1,422) 1,571
Deferred:
Federal ... .. . i e — — —

State, foreignandother ......... ... ... ... .. i il — — —

Provision for (benefit from) income taxes — continuing operations .... $759  $(1,422) $1,571
The total provision for (benefit from) income taxes related to:
Income (loss) from continuing operations .. ................... $759  $(1.422) $1,571
Discontinued Operations . . . .........ouutiiiii e — (3,340) —
Total provision for (benefit from) income taxes ................ $759 $4,762) $1,571

The following represents the approximate tax effect of each significant type of temporary difference giving
rise to deferred income tax assets or liabilities from continuing operations:

December 31, December 25,

2003 2002
(In thousands)
Deferred tax assets:
Debt premium . .....ott e $ 3,608 $ 3,792
Leasereserves ... e 2,804 3,435
Self-insurance accruals ............ ... ... 17,010 16,591
Capitalized leases .. .......... ..., 6,046 6,017
Closed StOre I€SEIVE . ... v i s e e eiinne s 5,218 6,369
Fixedassets ............iuiiiiriniiinnnn.. 12,288 6,985
Pension and other retirement plans .................. 8,306 6,642
Otheraccruals ...... .. it 7,808 6,745
Capital loss carryforwards . ........................ 12,358 12,882
Alternative minimum tax credit carryforwards ......... 12,028 12,028
General business credit carryforwards .. .............. 44,830 48,533
Net operating loss carryforwards .................... 28,057 20,054
Less: valuation allowance ......................... (126,316) (113,112)
Deferred tax assets « . v v ittt 34,045 36,961
Deferred tax liabilities:
Intangible assets ........ ... ... i (34,045) (36,961)
Total deferred tax liabilities ... ..........ccoviivinen.... (34,045) (36,961)
Net deferred tax liability ............... ... ... ........ $ — $ —
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We have established a valuation allowance for the portion of the deferred tax assets for which it is more
likely than not that a tax benefit will not be realized. In establishing our valuation allowance, we have taken into
consideration certain tax planning strategies involving the sale of appreciated properties in order to alter the
timing of the expiration of certain net operating loss, or NOL, carryforwards in the event they were to expire
unused. Such strategies, if implemented in future periods, are considered by us to be prudent and feasible in light
of current circumstances.

Any subsequent reversal of the valuation allowance established in connection with fresh start reporting on
January 7, 1998 (approximately $55 million at December 31, 2003) would be applied first to reduce
reorganization value in excess of amounts allocable to identifiable assets, or reorganization value, then to reduce
other identifiable intangible assets, followed by a credit directly to equity. In 2000, we settled all issues related to
petitions we filed with the Internal Revenue Service, or IRS, to contest federal income tax deficiencies. In 2002
and 2001, computations of the federal income taxes and interest were completed and refunds were received
related to the IRS settlement, and we recorded an additional reduction in reorganization value of $1.2 million in
2002 and $4.2 million in 2001. During 2002 and 2001, we filed amended federal income tax returns to forgo
general business credits previously elected, which reduced the amount of general business credit carryforwards
but increased the NOL carryforwards available to future years. These changes are reflected in the valuation
allowance.

The difference between our statutory federal income tax rate and our effective tax rate on income (loss)
from continuing operations before discontinued operations is as follows:

2003 2002 2001

Statutory tax (benefit)rate ........... . ... ... B35% 35% (35%
Differences:
State, foreign, and other taxes, net of federal income tax benefit ......... 1 20 1
Amortization of reorganization value in excess of amounts allocable to
identifiable aSsets . .. ... e —_ — 12

Portion of net operating losses, capital losses and unused income tax
credits resulting from the establishment or reduction in the valuation

A OWANCE .« ot e e 36 80) 24
Othel' ........................................................ - _2 —
Effective tax rate . ... ... ..ttt e 2% _(_23)% 2%

In connection with FRD’s reorganization on July 10, 2002, we realized a gain from the extinguishment of
certain indebtedness, which is not taxable since it resulted from a reorganization under the bankruptcy code.
However, we are required to reduce certain tax attributes related to FRD including (1) NOL carryforwards,

(2) certain tax credits and (3) tax basis in assets in an amount equal to such gain on extinguishment. The NOL
carryforwards acquired by Denny’s in May 1996 along with any subsequent NOL’s and general business credits
that are allocable to FRD or its subsidiaries will either be eliminated due to FRD's reorganization under the
bankruptcy code or will no longer be utilizable by Denny’s to reduce future taxable income.

At December 31, 2003, Denny’s has available, on a consolidated basis, general business credit
carryforwards of approximately $44.8 million, most of which expire in 2004 through 2019, and alternative
minimum tax, or AMT, credit carryforwards of approximately $12 million, which never expire. Denny’s also has
available regular NOL and AMT NOL carryforwards of approximately $80 million and $116 million,
respectively, which expire in 2012 through 2023. In addition the Company has capital loss carryforwards
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available of approximately $35 million for regular tax and $54 million for AMT. Denny’s capital loss
carryforwards, which will expire in 2007, can only be utilized to offset certain capital gains generated by the
Company. Due to our reorganization on January 7, 1998, our ability to utilize the general business credit
carryforwards, AMT credit carryforwards, and NOL carryforwards which arose prior to the reorganization is
limited to a specified annual amount. The annual limitation for the utilization of these carryforwards is
approximately $21 million for NOL carryforwards or $7 million for tax credits. The annual limitation may also
be increased for the recognition of certain built-in gains. Regular NOL carryforwards of approximately $73
million and AMT NOL carryforwards of approximately $87 million that arose subsequent to the reorganization
are not subject to any limitation as of the end of 2003, although limitations could be triggered by future changes
in Denny’s stock ownership.

On March 9, 2002, President Bush signed into law H.R. 3090, the Job Creation and Worker Assistance Act
of 2002, or the Act. The Act allowed us to carry back alternative minimum tax, or AMT, net operating losses
generated during 2001, which resulted in a cash refund of 1998 AMT taxes paid of approximately $2.7 million in
2002.

Note 10. Employee Benefit Plans

We maintain several defined benefit plans for continuing operations which cover a substantial number of
employees. Benefits are based upon each employee’s years of service and average salary. Our funding policy is
based on the minimum amount required under the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974. The
Pension Plan was closed to new participants as of December 31, 1999. Benefits will cease to accrue for Pension
Plan participants as of December 31, 2004. We also maintain defined contribution plans.

The components of net pension cost of the pension plan and other defined benefit plans as determined under
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 87, “Employers’ Accounting for Pensions,” are as follows:

2003 2002 2001
(In thousands)

Pension Plan:
SEIVICE COSE ottt e et e $ 298 $ 267 $ 266
Interest CoSt . ... it 2,874 2,805 2,713
Expected return onplanassets . ...................... (2,531) (3,064) (3,051)
Amortizationofnetloss . .............. .. ... . ... 855 293 —_
Net periodic benefit cost (gain) ...................... $149 $ 301 $ (72)
Other comprehensive loss . ......................... $3,053 $7,110 $4,791
Other Defined Benefit Plans:
SEIVICE COSE vttt et et ettt et et $ 392 § 336 §$§ 510
Interest COSt ... it e 239 239 229
Recognized net actuarial gain . ...................... 56 15 (15)
Net periodic benefitcost ........................... $ 687 $ 590 $ 724
Other comprehensive (income)loss . .................. $ @7) $ 460 $ 171

Net pension and other defined benefit plan costs charged to continuing operations (including premiums paid
to the Pension Benefit Guaranty Corporation) for 2003, 2002 and 2001 were $2.3 million, $1.1 million and $0.9
million, respectively.
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The following table sets forth the funded status and amounts recognized in our balance sheet for our pension
plan and other defined benefit plans:

Pension Plan Other Defined Benefit Plans
December 31, December 25, December 31, December 25,
2003 2002 2003 2002

(In thousands)

Change in Benefit Obligation

Benefit obligation at beginning of year ........ $43,602  $39,680 $ 3,700 $ 4,526
Service Cost . ..vvnt i e 298 267 392 336
Interestcost .......... .. it 2,874 2,805 239 239
Actuarial losses (gains) .................... 5,920 3,162 35 570
Benefitspaid ............ . ... ... ... (2,490) (2,312) (386) (1,971)
Benefit obligation atend of year ......... ... $50204  §43,602 $ 3,870 $ 3,700
Change in Plan Assets

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year ... $ 30,794  $ 31,003 $ — $ —
Actual returnon planassets .. ............... 4,613 (1,098) — —
Employer contributions .................... — 3,201 386 1,971
Benefitspaid ................ .. ... ... (2,490) (2,312) (386) (1.971)
Fair value of plan assets at end of year ........ $32917  $30,79% $ — $ —
Reconciliation of Funded Status

Fundedstatus ................ . ... ....... $(17,287)  $(12.808)  $(3,870) $(3,700)
Unrecognized losses ...................... 17,599 14,617 763 894
Net amount recognized .................... $ 312 $ 1,809 $(3,107) $(2,806)

Amounts Recognized in the Consolidated
Balance Sheet Consist of:

Accrued benefit liability ................... $(17,086)  $(12,536) $(3,651) $(3,437)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss ....... 17,398 14,345 544 631
Net amount recognized .................... $ 312 $ 1,809 $(3,107) $(2,806)
Other:

Accumulated benefit obligation .............. $50,002  §43,331 $ 3,647 $ 3418

The increase in minimum pension liability included in other comprehensive loss was $3.0 million and $7.6
million, as of December 31, 2003, and December 25, 2002, respectively.

Weighted-average assumptions used in the actuarial computations to determine benefit obligations as of
December 31, 2003, and December 25, 2002, were as follows:

03 2
DISCOUNLIALE . ..ottt e e e e e e e 6.00% 6.75%
Rate of increase in compensationlevels ................ .. ... . ... ... 4.00% 4.00%
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Weighted-average assumptions used in the actuarial computations to determine net periodic pension cost for
the three years ended December 31, 2003, were as follows:

2003 2002 2001

Discountrate .............oiiiiiiiiiii 6.75% 6.715% 7.25%
Rate of increase in compensation levels ....................... 4.00% 4.00% 4.00%
Expected long-term rate of returnonassets . .................... 8.50% 9.50% 9.50%

In determining the expected long-term rate of return on assets, we evaluated input primarily from our
actuaries, including their review of asset class return expectations, as well as long-term historical asset class
returns. Projected returns are based on broad equity and bond indices. Additionally, we considered our historical
10-year and 15-year compounded returns, which have been in excess of our forward-looking return expectations.

Our pension plan weighted-average asset allocations as a percentage of plan assets as of December 31,
2003, and December 25, 2002, by asset category, were as follows:

03 200

Asset Category
EqUIty SECUIIIES . ..o\ o vttt e et e e e 50% 49%
Debt SECUMtES . .. vttt et e e 50% 49%
L s - 2%
-1 P 100% 100%

Our investment policy for pension plan assets is to maximize the total rate of return (income and
appreciation) with a view to the long-term funding objectives of the pension plans. Therefore, the pension plan
assets are diversified to the extent necessary to minimize risks and to achieve an optimal balance between risk
and return and between income and growth of assets through capital appreciation.

We made $3.2 million of contributions to our qualified pension plans in 2002. No contributions were made
to our qualified pension plans in 2003. We made contributions of $0.4 million and $2.0 million to our other
defined benefit plans in 2003 and 2002, respectively. In 2004, we expect to contribute $5.1 million to our
qualified pension plan and $0.2 million to our other defined benefit plans.

In addition, eligible employees can elect to contribute 1% to 15% of their compensation to 401(k) plans or
1% to 50% under other defined contribution plans. Under these plans, we make matching contributions, subject
to certain limitations. Amounts charged to income from continuing operations under these plans’ operations were
$1.5 million, $1.4 million and $1.9 million for 2003, 2002, and 2001 respectively.

Note 11. Commitments and Contingencies

There are various claims and pending legal actions against or indirectly involving us, including actions
concerned with civil rights of employees and customers, other employment related matters, taxes, sales of
franchise rights and businesses and other matters. Our ultimate legal and financial liability with respect to these
matters cannot be estimated with certainty. However, we believe, based on our examination of these matters and
our experience to date, that the ultimate liability, if any, in excess of amounts already provided for in our
consolidated financial statements is not likely to have a material effect on our results of operations, financial
position or cash flows.

In January 2000, we entered into an agreement with Affiliated Computer Services, Inc., or ACS, to manage
and operate our information technology for our corporate headquarters, restaurants and field management. Under
the agreement, including expenditures related to FRD, we spent $1.7 million, $7.9 million and $13.5 million in
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2003, 2002, and 2001 respectively. In August 2002, we brought all services provided by ACS, except help desk
services, in-house to our corporate headquarters. Our agreement with ACS expired on April 30, 2003 at which
time help desk services were brought in-house to our corporate headquarters.

Note 12. Capital Structure
Stock Option Plans

Pursuant to the plan of reorganization, and shortly after January 7, 1998, we adopted the Advantica
Restaurant Group Stock Option Plan, or the Non-Officer Plan, and the Advantica Restaurant Group Officer Stock
Option Plan, or the Officer Plan. Effective March 15, 1999, the Non-Officer Plan and the Officer Plan were
merged together and the surviving plan’s name was changed to the Advantica Stock Option Plan. All participants
in the Non-Officer Plan and Officer Plan on the effective date of the plan merger continued to be participants in
the Advantica Stock Option Plan and retained all options previously issued to participants under the Officer Plan
and the Non-Officer Plan under the same terms and conditions existing at the time of grant.

On March 20, 2002, the Compensation and Incentives Commiittee of the Board of Directors of Denny’s (the
“Compensation Committee”) adopted the Denny’s, Inc. Omnibus Incentive Compensation Plan for Executives,
or the Omnibus Plan, which later was approved by Denny’s shareholders on May 22, 2002. The Omnibus Plan
permits the grant of a variety of incentive awards including stock options, stock appreciation rights, restricted
stock units, performance shares, performance units, stock awards, cash-based awards and annual incentive
awards. The Omnibus Plan replaces previous stock option plans as the vehicle for granting stock options by the
Company to its employees.

The Compensation Committee has sole discretion to determine the exercise price, term and vesting schedule
of options awarded under such plans. A total of 10,588,888 shares of the Company’s common stock have been
authorized to be issued under the Omnibus Plan and previous stock option plans for employees. Under the terms
of the above referenced plans, optionees who terminate for any reason other than cause, disability, retirement or
death will be allowed 60 days after the termination date to exercise vested options. Vested options are exercisable
for one year when termination is by a reason of disability, retirement or death. If termination is for cause, no
option shall be exercisable after the termination date.

In addition to the plans above, we have adopted a Director Plan, the terms of which are substantially similar
to the terms of the plans noted above. A total of 200,000 shares of Denny’s common stock are authorized to be
issued under the Director Plan.

Under each plan, options granted to date generally vest evenly over 3 to 5 years, have a 10-year life and are
issued at the market value at the date of grant.

A summary of our stock option plans is presented below.

2003 2002 2001

Weighted Weighted Weighted
Average Average Average
Options Exercise Price  Options Exercise Price  Options Exercise Price

(Option amounts in thousands)

Outstanding, beginning of year ........ 5,891 $1.71 5,234 $2.34 2,491 $4.81
Granted .......... . 1,962 0.54 1,916 0.92 3,750 1.14
Exercised ......................... — — 4n 0.84 — _

Forfeited/Expired ................... (701) 1.17 (1,218) 3.21 (1,007 3.99
Outstanding, endof year . .. ........... 7,152 1.44 5,891 1.71 5,234 2.34
Exercisable at yearend ............... 3,835 2.02 2,347 2.43 1,880 3.46

F-29




DENNY’S CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

The following table summarizes information about stock options outstanding at December 31, 2003 (option
amounts in thousands):

Weighted-
Average Weighted- Weighted-
Number Remaining Average Number Average
Range of Outstanding Contractual Exercise Exercisable Exercise
Exercise Prices _at1231/03 __Life _Price at1231/03 _Price
$0.54- 0.84 2,804 8.53 $0.65 1,047 $0.84
0.92- 1.06 2,668 7.61 0.98 1,358 0.99
2.00 750 7.10 2.00 500 2.00
3.50- 4.69 755 5.29 3.79 755 3.79
6.32 -10.00 175 4.48 8.76 175 8.76

7,152 3,835

The weighted average fair value per option of options granted during 2003, 2002 and 2001 was $0.42, $0.65
and $0.85, respectively.

Warrants

There were approximately 3.2 million warrants outstanding for each of the years ended December 31 2003,
December 25, 2002 and December 26, 2001. Each warrant, when exercised, will entitle the holder to purchase
one share of common stock at an exercise price of $14.60 per share, subject to adjustment for certain events.
Such warrants may be exercised through January 7, 2005.

Stockholders Right Plan

Our Board of Directors adopted a stockholder rights plan on December 14, 1998, which is designed to
provide protection for our shareholders against coercive or unfair takeover tactics. The rights plan is also
designed to prevent an acquirer from gaining control of Denny’s without offering a fair price to all shareholders.
The rights plan was not adopted in response to any specific proposal or inquiry to gain control of Denny’s.

The rights, until exercised, do not entitle the holder to vote or receive dividends. We have the option to
redeem the rights at a price of $0.01 per right, at any time prior to the earlier of (1) the time the rights become
exercisable or (2) December 30, 2008, the date the rights expire. Until the rights become exercisable, they have
no dilutive effect on earnings per share.
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Income (Loss) Per Share Applicable to Common Shareholders

2003 2002 2001
(In thousands)
Numerator for basic and diluted income (loss) per share —
income (loss) from continuing operations .................. $(31,483) $ 7,534  $(88,544)
Denominator:
Denominator for basic income (loss) per share — weighted
averageshares ......... ... .. ... i 40,687 40,270 40,136
Effect of dilutive securities:
Contingently issuable shares .......................... — 251 —
Options . . ............... e — 62 —
Denominator for diluted income (loss) per share — adjusted
weighted average shares and assumed conversions of dilutive
SECUTILIES & v v ot ettt e et e e e e e 40,687 40,583 40,136
Basic and diluted income (loss) per share from continuing
OPETALIONS . o« v vttt e et e e et e e e e $ ©77H $ 019 § 221

The calculations of basic and diluted income (loss) per share have been based on the weighted average
number of shares outstanding. Warrants have been omitted from the calculations of weighted average diluted
shares for all periods presented because they have an antidilutive effect on income (loss) per share. Except for the
year ended December 25, 2002, options have been omitted from the calculations because they have an
antidilutive effect on loss per share.

Awards under a performance plan initiated in 2002 were earned during 2003 and 2002 based on the
performance of our common stock relative to a peer group of restaurant companies and were payable 50% in
cash and 50% in our common stock. Approximately $0.3 million and $0.5 million were earned and expensed
under the plan in 2003 and 2002, respectively. Approximately 0.6 million shares were issued in 2003 pursuant to
this performance plan, (.3 million of which were earned in 2002 and reported as contingently issuable shares at
December 25, 2002.

Note 13. Related Party Transactions

We have frequently sold company-owned restaurants to former employees, including our former executives.
We received consideration totaling $13.2 million during 2001 from the sale of restaurants to related parties. Of
those amounts, we received cash proceeds of $12.4 million during 2001. There were no sales of company-owned
restaurants to former employees during 2002 or 2003.

Note 14, Discontinued Operations

As aresult of our decision to dispose of FRD, we began accounting for FRD as a discontinued operation in
the second quarter of 2000.

On July 10, 2002, through FRD’s bankruptcy proceedings, the divestiture of FRD was completed. As part of
the transaction, Denny’s received a payment of approximately $32.5 million related to FRD’s senior secured
credit facility for which Denny’s was the lender. Such payment represented all remaining outstanding obligations
under the facility, less a $10 million discount, at July 10, 2002. This was the maximum amount payable to
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Denny’s under a plan of reorganization and settlement agreement. The divestiture of FRD resulted in a gain on
the disposal of discontinued operations in the third quarter of 2002 of $56.6 million, representing the receipt of
proceeds of approximately $32.5 million, and the elimination of the net liabilities of discontinued operations of
approximately $24.1 miilion at July 10, 2002. As required by our credit facility, the proceeds received from the
divestiture of FRD were used to reduce the balance outstanding under our credit facility by approximately $32.5
million.

The FRD letters of credit secure certain obligations of FRD and its subsidiaries under various insurance
programs which are anticipated to be satisfied in the ordinary course of business. Denny’s continues to provide
$5.6 million of cash collateral supporting FRD’s letters of credit for a fee until the letters of credit terminate or
are replaced. Denny’s also received a separate four-year note payable from reorganized FRD for continuing to
provide the cash collateral. The cash collateral has been deposited with one of FRD’s former lenders and is
reflected as a component of other noncurrent assets in the accompanying balance sheet at December 31, 2003.
We recorded interest income of $0.3 million, $2.1 million and $5.0 million during 2003, 2002 and 2001,
respectively, related to the FRD credit facility.

Also on July 10, 2002, Denny’s entered into a service agreement to provide various management and
support services to FRD over an initial term of up to one year. The last of such services terminated on November
30, 2002. Total fees received under the service agreement from commencement on July 10, 2002 through
December 25, 2002 were $2.3 million. As a result of the divestiture of FRD and the termination of the service
agreement, we reduced our number of support staff positions by thirty-three in the fourth quarter of 2002.

Our statements of consolidated operations and cash flows for all periods presented herein reflect FRD as
discontinued operations in accordance with APB 30. Revenue, operating loss and net loss of discontinued
operations for the reported periods (through the divestiture of FRD on July 10, 2002) are as follows:

2002 2001
(In thousands)
Revenue . ....... ... .. ., $179,657 $350,944
Operating1oss .........covveeiinnn... $ 302y $ (7,595
Netloss . oo e $ (5,262) $(22,409)

During 2002, we also recorded $4.0 million in income from discontinued operations as a result of the
reversal of liabilities related to entities previously reported as discontinued operations.
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Note 15. Quarterly Data (Unaudited)

The results for each quarter include all adjustments which, in our opinion, are necessary for a fair
presentation of the results for interim periods. Nonrecurring adjustments include restructuring charges and exit
costs, impairment charges and extraordinary items. Otherwise, all adjustments are of a normal and recurring
nature.

Selected consolidated financial data for each quarter of 2003 and 2002 are set forth below:

First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter  Quarter (a)

(In thousands, except per share data)
Year Ended December 31, 2003:

Revenue:
Company restaurant sales . .................... $199.444 $208,457 $215,573 $228,379
Franchise and licensing revenue ................ 21,397 21,603 22,817 23,275
Total operating revenue . .................. 220,841 230,060 238,390 251,654
Cost of company restaurant sales:
Product costs . ..........oiiiiii .. 49,075 53,008 56,215 60,895
Payroll and benefits .......................... 88,544 92,151 91,080 96,866
Occupancy ........coeiiiii i 12,100 11,947 12,296 12,690
Other operating eXpenses . ..............oooun... 28,745 28,086 31,354 30,378
Total costs of company restaurant sales . ... .. 178,464 185,192 190,945 200,829
Cost of franchise and license revenue ................ 6,492 6,778 6,801 7,054
General and administrative expenses .. ............... 13,203 13,044 11,982 13,039
Depreciation and other amortization ................. 14,257 14,420 15,254 16,069
Restructuring charges and exitcosts ................. 46 (982) 70 1,479
Impairment charges ............ ... .. i, 289 410 1,190 2,097
Gains on disposition of assets and other,net . .......... 2,317y (2,552) (778) (197)
Total operating costs and expenses .................. 210,434 216,310 225,464 240,370
Operaling income .. .........covveeireennnrnnnnn.. $ 10407 $ 13,750 $ 12,926 $ 11,284
Loss from continuing operations . ................... (9,082) (5,377) (6,273) (10,751)
Netloss ... (9,082) (5,377) (6,273) (10,751)
Basic and diluted net income (loss) per share from
continuing operations . . .. .......c.oviiuiit .. (0.22) (0.13) (0.15) (0.26)
Basic and diluted net income (loss) per share .......... (0.22) (0.13) (0.15) (0.26)

(a) The fiscal year ended December 31, 2003 includes 53 weeks of operations as compared to 52 weeks for all
other years presented.
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Year Ended December 25, 2002:

Revenue:
Company restaurant sales ............ ...,
Franchise and licensing revenue .......................

Total operatingrevenue . . ................ccn.n..

Cost of company restaurant sales:
Productcosts .................... e
Payrolland benefits .. ........... ... ... ... ...
Occupancy . ................. [P
Other Operating €Xpenses . ... ......vvvevrerenenenene.n

Total costs of company restaurant sales .............
Cost of franchise and licenserevenue .................... ...
General and administrative eXpenses . ......................
Depreciation and other amortization ........................
Restructuring charges and exitcosts . ......... ...t
Impairmentcharges ........ .. .. .. ... i
Gains on disposition of assets and other,net .................

Total operating costs and Xpenses . .............ovvevennann

Operating inCome . . ...ttt i,

Income (loss) from continuing operations ...................
Netincome (I0SS) ...ttt it

Basic and diluted net income (loss) per share from continuing
OPETALIONS . o ettt ettt et et
Basic and diluted net income (loss) pershare . ................

F-34

First Second
Quarter Quarter

Third
Quarter

Fourth
Quarter

(In thousands, except per share data)

$212,234 $217,452 $223,499 $205,384
22,225 22,890 23355 21,545
234459 240,342 246,854 226,929
51,694 51,531 52,573 49,238
88,292 88,112 92,937 92,142
12,399 12,170 12,398 12,231
29,307 28,583 33,083 31,518
181,692 180,396 190,991 185,129
7,245 7,376 7,349 6,606
14,178 14,033 10,804 10,986
20,698 20,860 20,734 20,959
298 2,781 — 442

— 497 465 3,594
(1,816)  (1,764)  (2,372)  (3,175)
222295 224,179 227971 224,541
$ 12,164 $ 16,163 $ 18,883 $ 2,388
(4,684) 16212 428)  (3,566)
(4,684) 16212 56,134 474
(0.12) 0.40 (0.01) (0.09)
(0.12) 0.40 1.39 0.01
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/s/ ELIZABETH A. SANDERS Director March 25, 2004
(Elizabeth A. Sanders)

/s/ DONALD R. SHEPHERD Director March 25, 2004
(Donald R. Shepherd)

/s/ Vabpa HILL Director March 25, 2004
(Vada Hill)
/s/ DEBRA SMITHART-OGLESBY Director March 25, 2004

(Debra Smithart-Oglesby)




Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION

I, Nelson J. Marchioli, President and Chief Executive Officer of Denny’s Corporation, certify that:

1.
2.

1 have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Denny’s Corporation;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to
state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which
such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this
report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash
flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) for the
registrant and have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and
procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to
the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in
this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of
the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

c) disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in
the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially
affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of
internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the
registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent function):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control
over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to
record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal controls over financial reporting.

/s/ NELsON J. MARCHIOLI

Nelson J. Marchioli
President and Chief Executive Officer

Date: March 25, 2004




Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION

I, Andrew F. Green, Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of Denny’s Corporation, certify that:

1.
2.

I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Denny’s Corporation;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to
state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which
such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this
report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash
flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) for the
registrant and have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and
procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to
the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in
this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of
the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

c) disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in
the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially
affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of
internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the
registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent function):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control
over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to
record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal controls over financial reporting.

/s/ ANDREW F. GREEN

Andrew F. Green
Senior Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer

Date: March 25, 2004




Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION

Nelson J. Marchioli
President and Chief Executive Officer of Denny’s Corporation

and

Andrew F. Green
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial officer

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350,
As Adopted Pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Denny’s Corporation (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the fiscal
year ended December 31, 2003 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the
“Report”), 1, Nelson J. Marchioli, President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company, and I, Andrew F.
Green, Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C.

Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934; and

2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial
condition and results of operations of the Company.

/s/ NELSON J. MARCHIOLI

Nelson J. Marchioli
President and Chief Executive Officer

March 25, 2004

/s/ ANDREW F. GREEN

Andrew F. Green
Senior Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer

March 25, 2004

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906, or other document authenticating,
acknowledging, or otherwise adopting the signature that appears in typed form within the electronic version of
this written statement required by Section 906, has been provided to Denny’s Corporation and will be retained by
Denny’s Corporation and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.
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Shareholder Information

Corporate Office
Denny’s Corporation
203 East Main Street
Spartanburg, SC 29319
(864) 597-8000

Independent Auditors
KPMG LLP
Greenville, SC
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